Message

From: Sam Wade [sam@nrwa.org]
Sent: 3/13/2018 7:07:17 PM
To: Jackson, Ryan [fo=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=38bc8e18791a47d88a279db2fec8bd60-Jackson, Ryl; Greenwalt, Sarah
[/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: Rural Water Invitation to Administrator

Attachments: Pruitt Conference Invitation.pdf

Good afternoon:

FYI the attached invitation to the Administrator was sent today. It is for our annual conference
in Fort Worth Texas.
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NRWA  Asmericak Largest Utility Membership

2915 8. 13th Street, Duncan, OK 73533
580.252.0629 | nrwa.org

March 13, 2018

The Honorable Scott Pruitt
Administrator

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Williarm Jefferson Clinton Building
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, BC 20004

Dear Administrator Pruitt:

The National Rural Water Association (NRWA) invites your participation as the keynote speaker in this
year's WaterPro Conference, September 17-19, 2018 in Fort Worth, Texas.

The WaterPro Conferance will be attended by approximately 2,060 rural and small community leaders
from every state of the union. They consist of directors, board members, councils and decision makers
of community water and wastewater systems that serve the public.

it is an honor to invite you to farmally present your message of cooperative federalism and collaboration
with states to our members. Opening session is scheduled for Monday, September 17%, ot 8:30 a.m, CT
or an alternative time could be coordinated on Wednesday, September 19™, to close cur conference.

The NRWA, headquartered in Duncan, Oklahoma, represents 30,000 community water supply and
wastewater systems and is the largest water utility membership organization in the nation. NRWA s a
non-profit organization dedicated to training, supporting, and promoting the water and wastewater
professionals that serve and represent small communities across the United States.

We greatly appreciate your consideration and stand ready to provide any additional information needed
to sccommodate vour schedule and reguests for participation.

sarﬁ“"waf'ﬁ'@-’«w“%%ﬁw
éE.O,,‘,.N.a.t.imna!--—Ru'i:é' Nater Association

29155, 13"
Duncan, OK 73533
WWWLNIWa. 0
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Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Sent: 2/28/2018 5:33:21 PM

To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Subject: Beyond Politics: Private Action and Climate Policy

Attachments: Beyond Politics.pdf

Dear Colleague,

The Environmental Forum (Environmental Law Institute) will be publishing my review of Beyond Politics. The Private
Governance Response to Climate Change by Michael P. Vandenbergh and Jonathan M. Gilligan, respectively, professors
of law and engineering at Vanderbilt. A copy of my review is attached for your information.

Thank you.
Tracy

G. Tracy Mehan, i
Executive Director, Government Affairs
American Water Works Association

Attachment

This communication is the property of the American Water Works Association and may contain confidential or privileged
information. Unauthorized use of this communication is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful. If you have received this
communication in error, please immediately notify the sender by reply email and destroy all copies of the communication
and any attachments.

American Water Works Association
Dedicated to the World's Most Important Resource ®

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00105459-00001



In the [iterature

Beyond Politics
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Mixing Private Action and Climate Policy

By G. Tracy Mehan 111

istinguishing
from

government
identify-
ing the separate yet comple-
mentary roles of the private and pub-
lic sphefes, say, in the realm of envi-
ronmental management, and think-
ing seriously about the opportunities
and barriers of an integrated or col-
laborative approach to confronting
the challenges of the day — none of
this would have made any sense to a
citizen of the Roman Empire in the
rime of Auvgustus.

governance,

The classical view did not tecognize
anything like civil society beyond the

Empire itself encompassing both po-

or privatization. She demonstrated that
pastures,
woods, lakes, and groundwater basins,

user-managed fish  stocks,
in many countries and cultures, are able
to establish norms of behavior, sophis—~
ticated rules for decisionmaking, and
Her
classic book on the subject is Governing
the Commons: The Evolution of Institu-
tions for Collective Actions (1)90 ).
Given the state of environmental
protection today, with many problcms
dispersed throughout society, the land-

CVETL ffIlfOl‘CCmCﬂE mcdnmism‘e

scape, the air- and watershed, in‘volving
numerous small sources or causes of
harm, all within the control of private

(1997). They noted the value of keep-
ing pace with the important elements
of “instirurional rfﬁaﬁgnmcnt that are
occurring in society. Notabiy, the role
of government is narrowing, the private
SECtors responsibﬂitics are broadening,
and nongovernmental organizations,
from think tanks to activist groups, are

increasingly important policy actors.”
Michael P Vandenbergh and Jona-
than M. Gilligan, respectively, profes-
sors of law and engineering ar Vander-
bile University, argue strr:nuousiy for
private action and governance spe-
cifically, in the context of the climate
changa and the fagging cfforts of
governments, especially the United
States, to take meaningful action. They
are not ant-governmental actdon. But
they believe that time is Hying and pri-
vate action provid@s a realistic, interim
strategy untdl an effective political
consensus develops before catastrophe
befalls the world. Their Beyord Foli-
tics: The Private Governance

litical, social and rr:ﬁgious
aspects. It was only after

centuries of struggle between
Church and Empire, state
and society, and the emer-
gence of varying degrees of
individualism, did the con-
cept of a civil order and in-
stitutions  (church, family,
communicy, labor unions,
corporations), antecedent to
and independent of the state,
Come to pass,

Withour civil society, gov-

KUEIIE AND FIRLIC LIV GRS

Beyond Politics

Press;
{Amazon Prime).

errment and goVernance arc

. Beyond Politics. The Private
Governance Response to
Climate Change. By Michael
P. Vandenbergh and Jonathan M.
. Gilligan. Cambridge University
487 pages; $99.99

Responsse to Climate Change
is an imposing work of aca-
demic scholarship {e.g., over
200 footnotes in one chaptcr
alone). But their engaging,
accessible writing style makes
the slog a pleasant one for the
diligent reader. It might have
been subtided Making a Vir-
tue of Necessity given the reali-
ties of climate politics, global
aspirations  for
growth, and the complexity
of the science.

economic

essentially the same. With
civil society government is simply part
of the complex web of governance by
which a sodlety orders itself as well as
the state. Thus, no longer is governance
viewed as a synonym for government.
The late Elinor Ostrom of Indiana
University, the first woman to receive
the Nobel Prize in economics, did
pioneering research on a piethora of
collaborative approaches tw resource
management — governance i you
will — around the world in ways that
mitigate the Tragcdy of the Commons
not imagined by Garrete Hardin, who
reduced everythi ng to either reguiarion

parties, households, farms and institu-
tions, the old top-down, hierarchical
model, driven by a federal government
much less revered now than in the
1970s, seems inadcquat@.

Writing in 1997, Daniel Esty and
Marian R. Chertow of Yale, called for
the “next generation” of environmental
policic:s “that are not confroneational
but cooperative, less fragmented and
more comprchensive, not inflexible
but rather capable of bcina railored to
fit varying circumstances.”
duction 1o Thinking Ecologically: The

Next Generation of Environmental Policy

" See intro-

In the very first line of
their preface, Vandenbergh and Gilli-
gan cite Gaﬂup for the proposition that
two thirds of Americans believe that
big government is the greatest threat
facing the Unired States. So any sys-
tematic rrzguiation to mitigare climate
change faces pr€dictablc resistance. The
authors seem to believe that the Trump
administrations rollback on carbon
regulatdon is a temporary phﬁnomcr
non, but they astutely observe that the
2009 Waxman-Markey cap-and-trade
bill failed “even thouvh the party that
ESPOUSEs SUPPOTT for climate mitiga-
tion controlled the White House and

6 |THE ENVIRONMENTAL FORUM
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both bodies of Congress — a failure
that seems remarkable until it is viewed
against the backdrop of two decades
with only one major new pollution
control starute.”

“Only in the past several years have
scholars begun to recognize that a fun-
damental shift has occurred away from
federal Iegislation as a social response
to environmental threars, a shift that
became much more apparent with
the 2016 elections,” write the authors,
They might also have noted the 1997
vote of 95-0 in favor of the Byrd-Hagel
Resolution in the U.S. Senate against
signing onto the Kyoto Protocol.

Vandenbergh and Gilligan make a
sincers, passionate, even eloquent case
to both conservative and liberal skep-
tics, the former skcpticaf as to climate
policy in gcnfﬁral and big government
in particular, the latter concerned
about undermining the case of strong
govsmm@ntai action on climate.

Essentially, these authors see zero
chance of the community of nations
meeting the goal of stabilizing global
temperature ar 2 de-
grees Celsius as called
for in the Paris Agree-
fact, the
Paris Agreement, even
it all commirments
are fulfilled, will allow
an increase in gi-:)bai
emissions of roughlv 34 1o 46 percent
in 2025 over 1990 levels.” Fven with
full implementaton of all Paris com-
mitments, the globe is ﬁkdy to see
temperatures of more than 3 degrees
Celsius above pre-industrial ones.

The Vanderbilt prof‘és‘aors look to
private action to achieve “a significant
fraction of the necessary rﬁdubtmns
— carbon dioxide emissions equiva-

[£e
ment. In

lent to mughiy 1 billion tons out of

the 5.5 billion tons per year of reduc-
tions necessary over the next decade
to close the Paris Gap.” They view this
strategy as “’Duying time for a more
comprehensive government response’
at some indeterminate point in the fu-
ture, presumably post-Trump. They do
not posit “an all-or-nothing argument
that the world must choose berween

Filling the gap between

what government can

achieve and a realistic
temperature goal

In the [iterature

public and private governance. In our
view, they are complementary, and we
should pursue both.”

"the authors cite many instanc-
es of effective private action,
4. notably major
and corporations such as Walmart,

institutions

Microsoft, Google, and the like, cor-
porate giants which can lean on their
supplifﬁrs for emission reductions,
practices that could be scaled up
nationally and internationally. They
take heart in Elinor Ostrom’s con-
cept of “polycentric governance to
reduce GHG emissions” which she
first applied to the management of
water resources and the provision of
municipal services. This refers to the
use of multiple scales of government
and nongovernmental organizations
to a&&icse collective action problems,
such as managing common pool re-
SOUTCEs.

Readers of THE ENVIRONMENTAL
Forum may recall Professor Vanden-
be:rg}fs article, “The
Drivers of Corporate
Climate Mitigadon,”
in the January/Febru-
ary issue, pmvﬁding a
succinet statement of
the case for private ac-
tion in that realm.

Big fans of Pope Francis and his
2016 encyclical addrr:ssing the moral
dimension of climate change, they
view the Catholic Church as not justan
influencer on government, but also “a
private rcguiat-:)r of its energy suppiicrs
and emissions in and of itself” Based
on their back-of-the-envelope caleu-
lations, Catholicism, with its many
churches, schools, hospitals, orphanag-
es, and missions, would be among the
top 50 Eargcst emitters in the world if it
were a country. Whether or not such a
vast collection of bishoprics, dioceses,
rdigi-:)us orders, Iay institutions, and
the like could ever be subject 1o such
centralized management, not with-
standing its unity of doctrine and prac-
tice, it is an interesting thought experi-
ment, as the Germans say.

Vandenbergh and Gilligan aim o
ground their optimism on sound rea-
soning, to wit: “Our view that many
houscholds and corporations will re-
spond to private initatives by rﬁducing
emissions does not require unrealistic
assumptions about altruism. Instead,
the opportunity arises because private
initiatives can stimulare efhiciency im-
provements that have not yet been
exploited because of market and be-
havioral failures. Private initlatives also
can draw on existing levels of support
for climate mitigation in ways that gov-
ernments cannot. These initiatives also
can address solution aversion among
moderates and conservatives, bypass-
ing resistance to government climate
effores thar arises from concerns about
big government. At the inrernational
level, private governance initiatives can
supplement the slow and cumbersome
international negotiations process. Pri-
vate initatives also can harness supply
chains to transfer pressure for lower-
carbon goods and services across in-
ternational boundaries, circumventing
sovereignty and free-trade concerns and
increasing support for mitigation in de-
veloped and developing countric‘e »

The pimupal barrier” is “concep-
tual,” i.c., “the need for opinion lead-
ers, corporate and NGO leaders, and
philanthropists to grasp the magmmdc
of the opportunities available to them.”

Beyond Politics is provocative and
chaﬂcngmg, well-sourced and full of
insights as ro motivational approaches
to household and institurional behavw-
ior. Yet, no where in the dozen or so
pages of the book’s index will the read-
er find any references to either adapra-
tion or resilience in the face of climate
change. The authors chose to focus ex-
dusivdy on mitigation. Society, how-
ever, may be forced to consider other
options given the stark politica] and
econormic realities of climate poﬁcy.

G. Tracy Mehan 1l is an adjunct professor
at the Antonin Scalia Law School, George
Mason University, and executive director for
government affairs at the American Water
Works Association. He may be reached at
tmehan@awwa.org.
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Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Sent: 12/21/2017 6:44:25 PM

To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Subject: AWWA Whiteboard Animation on Farm Bill Reauthorization and Source Water Protection

hitos:/fwww . voutube comdwatchPv=kPEdoWeedGe&festure=am-share vides user

Feel free to post this as appropriate. Thank you.

GT™M

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

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00105978-00001



Message

From: Sam Wade [sam@nrwa.org]

Sent: 12/20/2017 1:29:54 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: Just a note

Just a note Sarah:

To wish you and yours a blessed Holiday Season and Merry Christmas. 2017 has been an
interesting year and | suspect 2018 will be as well. 1 hope you get some time back in Okie Land
to relax. Thanks for making the train run in the right direction. .

Sincerely,

Sam Wade

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00105986-00001



Message

From:
Sent:
To:
CC:

Subject:

Kelly Craft | Ex. 6 i
12/9/2017 3:48:25 AM
Ford, Hayley [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=4748a9029¢f74453a20ee8ac9527830c¢-Ford, Hayle]
joe.craft@arlp.com; Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Re: The Great Lakes Restoration Initiative - timeline of funding

Thank you Hayley!

Kelly Craft
US Ambassador to Canada

On Dec 8, 2017, at 5:44 PM, Ford, Hayley <ford. haviey@epa. gov> wrote:

Sierra Club

Ambassador Craft,

Per your conversation with the Administrator earlier, | wanted to send along a timeline of funding for
the Great Lakes Restoration Initiative. The funding process is quite convoluted, but what you can take

away is that it’'s still funded at the same level as last year.

| also copied Sarah Greenwalt on this message who was on the conference call today. She is the
Administrator’s Senior Advisor for Water and has been very involved in Great Lakes issues.

Please let us know if you need anything else. Thanks!

Hayley Ford

Deputy White House Liaison and Personal Aide to the Administrator
Environmental Protection Agency

ford.haviev@ena sov

Phone: 202-564-2022

From: Greaves, Holly

Sent: Friday, December 8, 2017 1:40 PM

To: Ford, Hayley <ford havley@epa.gov>

Subject: The Great Lakes Restoration Initiative - timeline of funding

Hayley, please see attached.

Thanks,
Holly

<The Great Lakes Restoration Initiative.docx>

v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5

ED_002061_00106113-00001



Message

From: Joseph Craft [Joseph.Craft@arlp.com]

Sent: 12/9/2017 12:56:53 AM

To: Ford, Hayley [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=4748a9029¢f74453a20ee8ac9527830c¢-Ford, Hayle]

CC: kelly@kellycraft.com; Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: Re: The Great Lakes Restoration Initiative - timeline of funding

Thank you!!

Sent from my iPhone powered by Coal!

On Dec 8, 2017, at 5:44 PM, Ford, Hayley <ford. havley@epa. sov> wrote:

CAUTION: This is an email from an external sender. Use caution when clicking on links,
opening attachments or responding.

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

From: Ford, Hayley [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=4748A9029CF74453A20EEBACY9527830C-FORD, HAYLE]

Sent: 12/8/2017 10:44:07 PM

To: Ex. 6

CC: joe.craft@arlp.com; Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: FW: The Great Lakes Restoration Initiative - timeline of funding

Attachments: The Great Lakes Restoration Initiative.docx

Ambassador Craft,

Per your conversation with the Administrator earlier, | wanted to send along a timeline of funding for the Great Lakes
Restoration Initiative. The funding process is quite convoluted, but what you can take away is that it’s still funded at the
same level as last year.

| also copied Sarah Greenwalt on this message who was on the conference call today. She is the Administrator’s Senior
Advisor for Water and has been very involved in Great Lakes issues.

Please let us know if you need anything else. Thanks!

Hayley Ford

Deputy White House Liaison and Personal Aide to the Administrator
Environmental Protection Agency

ford haviey@eps.goy

Phone: 202-564-2022

From: Greaves, Holly

Sent: Friday, December 8, 2017 1:40 PM

To: Ford, Hayley <ford.hayley@epa.gov>

Subject: The Great Lakes Restoration Initiative - timeline of funding

Hayley, please see attached.

Thanks,
Holly

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00106116-00001



The Great Lakes Restoration Initiative (GLRI)

e The FY 2017 Enacted budget funded the Great Lakes Restoration Initiative (GLRI) at
$300 million. On May 4, 2017, Congress passed the bill (H.R. 244) into law, and on
May 5, 2017, the President signed the bill into law (P.L. 115-31).

o The President’s proposed budget for FY 2018 was released publicly on May 23, 2017,
which provided no funding for the GLRL

e Congress is ultimately responsible for appropriating funds to EPA’s programs, including
the GLRI. To date, Congress has not passed the FY 2018 Enacted budget.

e (Congressional mark-ups of the President’s proposed budget for FY 2018 have occurred in
both the House and Senate. The mark-ups of the House and Senate bills provide some
indication of final funding levels for the GLRI in the FY 2018 Enacted budget.

e Details of the House and Senate funding levels for the GLRI in the FY 2018 budget are
presented below:

o On September 14, 2017-The House passed a bill funding the GLRI at $300 million.
o On November 20, 2017- The Chairman’s Recommendation for the Senate proposed
funding the GLRI at $300 million.

e On December 7, 2017, both the House and Senate have passed a continuing resolution
(CR) to continue funding the Federal government at funding levels approximating the FY
2017 budget through December 22, 2017.

o Congress must either pass the FY 2018 Enacted budget, or pass another short-

term CR after December 22, 2017, to continue funding for the Federal
government.

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00106117-00001



Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]
Sent: 6/20/2018 3:15:59 PM

To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]
Subject: San Diego P3 presentation at ACE '18

Attachments: Maureen Stapleton Presentation re San Diego P3 Project.pdf

Dear Colleague,

Given your interest in innovative infrastructure finance, | thought you might find the attachment of interest. Itisa
presentation by Maureen Stapleton, General Manager, San Diego County Water Authority, on their massive P3 (public-
private partnership) initiative, a $1 billion investment in the Carlsbad desalination project. This presentation was made
at ACE '18 for a panel on “Everything You Wanted to Know About P3s but Were to Afraid to Ask.”

Thank you for your interest.
Tracy
G. Tracy Mehan, iii

Executive Director, Government Affairs
American Water Works Association

(direct)
Ex. 6 .,

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

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00106186-00001
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» $1 billion investment

» 50 MGD capacity - Up to
56,000 AF/year

» Designed, built, owned
and operated by private
developer (Poseidon
Water)

» 30-year Water Purchase
Agreement

» Water Authority takes
ownership at end of
agreement term.

2
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Increasing San Diego County's Water Supply Reliability
through Supply Diversification

2020

BOTAF  16TAF

N Metropolitan Water District | San Luis Rey Water Transfer

Groundwater

mperial Irrigation District Transfer | Recycled Water Local Surface Water

Potable Reuse

| All American & Coachella Canal Lining | Seawater Desalination

(TAF=Thousand Acre-Feet)
Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00106187-00003



» Who has the expertise to accomplish the
project?
> Public? Private? Both?

» What risk(s) is the agency willing to take?
> Permitting

Legal challenges

Financing

Construction costs and potential overruns

Design, Operations and Performance

2
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Resistance to a privately-owned base water
supply project
» “Profiteer” issue

Complexity of project and need to cover ALL
aspects of project in the contract

Impact on agency staff and workload
Potential l[imitation of number of bidders
» Transparency, transparency, transparency

4
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» Little in—house expertise in desalination
within the agency

» Numerous permit risk and legal challenges

» Significant outside financial investment
obtained and off-public balance sheet

» Quicker project delivery
» Relief from potential operational challenges

» Protection from financial impact of non-
verformance

» Guaranteed maintenance schedule per the
contract

6

ED_002061_00106187-00006



» Risk Transfer to Poseidon/Contractor team

» Price certainty throughout Water Purchase
Agreement term

» Buy-out provisions after 10 years of operation

» Transfer to public ownership at the end of the
30 year agreement

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00106187-00007



@sdcwa

facebook.com/
SanDiegoCounty
WaterAuthority

sdewa.org/mobile-news-app

S Slage Mowney Wiy Aeliaeisy

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00106187-00008



Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Sent: 5/31/2018 4:02:22 PM

To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Subject: Fracking, directional drilling, economics, environment and diplomacy

Attachments: Windfall Review.pdf

Dear Colleague,

Attached please find my review of Meghan O’Sullivan’s new book, Windfall: How the New Energy Abundance Upends
Global Politics and Strengthens America’s Power. This review will appear in an upcoming issue of The Environmental
Forum (Environmental Law Institute).

| hope you find it of interest. All the best.

Tracy

G. Tracy Mehan, i

Executive Director, Government Affairs
American Water Works Association

{direct)
EX. 6 .

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

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00106612-00001



In the [iterature

Fracking Files
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Mixing Energy, Economics, and Geopolitics

By G. Tracy Mehan 111

eghan L. OYSullivan tells
the story of how, on one
hazy iunday in late Febru-
drvzlﬁif the 935-foot, 100,000-ton
Asia Vision was maneuvered into po-
sition by four red, white and green
rugboats so as to perfectly ahgn this
behemoth with the four loading arms
of the jetty at Sabine Pass terminal,
“part of a one-thousand-acre facility
straddiing the Texas-Louisiana bor-
der.”

“With a wrench the size of a hu-
man arm, workers secured the ship to
the jetty,” writes O’Sullivan. “Natural
gas, which had been cooled to 260
degrees  Fahrenheit  and

The epiphany of the voyage of the
Asia Vision illuminates the amazing
developments in America’s energy
developments not without
showcasing  entrepre-

technological inno-

sector,
CONLIOVErsy,

neurial  drive,
varion, and a boom in the nation’s
production of tght oil and shale
gas through new techniques such as
hydraulic fracruring and directional
d;ﬁiﬂing. The impaces of this revolu-
tion in energy productian encom-
passed everything from local land use
battles to gross domestic product,
international oil and gas markets, the
climate changc debate, geopolitics,,,

States into an exporter of natural
gas, they convinced investors to
support their efforts to convert these
facilities from importing LNG to
exporting ie.”

The “unconventional
in the production of shale gas and
tight oil, the “windfall,”
the estimable George Mitchell, the
struggling petroleum engineer who
pionﬁcred hydraufic fras:turing, or
fracking, along with dozens of small

b OOIH”

Was ]Cd by

and midsized American companies,
transforming the world of energy.
In 2006 the United States pro-
duced enough shale gas to heat 15
million homﬁs a year. By 2014, it
could, hypothetically hfdi 200 mil-
lion homes. By 2015 more than half
of all natural gas produced in the
country came from shale, compared
to just 6 percent a decade carlier.
\X/hat worked for shale gas
worked for tight oil, starting in the

first decade of the 2000s.

quuﬁﬁﬁd OVEY thfi COUrse

of traveling through more
than a mile of steel pipe
and rﬁfrigcrating SYSTEMS,
flowed into the tanker”
A few days later,
sailed on to Brazil with its
three billion cubic feet of
gas.

This historic event was

}'JC ‘%}'J]}")

the culmination of more
than a decade of work by
an  American  company,
Cheniere Energy, at a cost
of $20 billion, to develop
this op-

extensive LNG

Windfali:

White Paper From the American Water
Works Association.

How the New Energy
Abundance Upends Global Politics
and Strengthens America’s
By Meghan L. O'Sullivan. Simon &
Schuster; 479 pages; $29.00.

Hydraulic Fracturing for Ol and Gas:
Impacts from the Hydraulic Fracturing
Water Cycle on Drinking Water
Resources in the United S

Erwvironimental Protection Agency.

Water and Hydraulic Fracturing: A

Production from places
like Eagle Ford in Texas
and the Baklen fields in
North Dakora resulted in
American tight oil produc-
tion surpassing Iraq’s over-
all productmn by 2014.

“In the same year, bur-
geoning U.S. tdight oil
production pushed over-
all American crude out-
put to be 10 puu;m of
the world’s supply,” writes
O’Sullivan, a professor at

Harvard’s Kennedy School

I)il: Government &HCE fOF'

Power.

tates,

eration without ever
rummg a profit. Indeed, “the Asia
Zision. was the first vessel carrying
LNG that shipped from the lower
forty-cight states since the 1960s.
After decades of frﬁtting abour irs
burgeoning dependency on  im-
ported energy, the United States
had become an exporter of natural
gas,” observes O’Sullivan in her new
Simon & Schuster book W’z‘nﬂ'ﬁi!’f
How the New Energ},’Aézmdzzace Up-
ends Global Politics and Strengthens

America’s Power.

and the rise and decline of nations
across the globe.

The drastic reversal of the Ameri-
can energy situation, cerrainly since
the 1973 OPEC embargo, is dem-
onstrated by the fact that Cheniere
“had gambled big in 2003 to build
facilities on the U.S Gulf Coast to
import @xpectcd waves of LNG,”
which Sullivan calls “a second
multibillion dollar Wagcrg” She says,
“Banking that this reversal of ener-
gy fortunes would turn the United

merly deputy national se-
curity adwsor for Irag and Afghani-
stan for President George W. Bueh
“Accounting for nearly half of over-
all U.S. crude oil production, tight
oil was the driving force behind
Armerica’s oil r@surgfﬁncc.”

Ifthe diiigcm reader were to scour
O’Sullivan’s 146 pages of notes, he
or she would be rewarded with the
following nuggets: the number of
wells in the Barnetr Shale (Texas)
rose from 2,070 ro 17,980, an in-
crease of 750 percent. And this: nat-

6 |THE ENVIRONMENTAL FORUM

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA

Tier 5

ED_002061_00106613-00001




ural gas pmducrion in the Barnett
grew from 834 million cubic feet a
day in 2003 to 5,752 million cubic
feet in 2012,

From O'Sullivan’s perspective
this cxplosivc growth in domestic
encrgy production resulted in noth-
ing less than an “American Renais-
sance’ of energy. “According to one
study by the consuitancy IHS, un
convenrional oil and gas producti-:m
added almost 1 percent o GDP
each year from 2008 to 2013, mak-
ing it rﬁsponsibfﬁ for appmximatdy
40 percent of all GDP growth dur-
ing that period,” spanning the Great
Recession.

“A 2015 Harvard
School/Boston Consulting Group
report used a more inclusive meth-
odology and calculated thar oil and
gas procﬁuczd by fracking contrib-
uted $430 billion or just about
2.5 percent of GDP — 1o the U.S.

cconomy in 2014 alone,” O’ Sullivan

Business

relates. “This amount translates into
roughly $1,400 for
each American in a
single calendar year
and is equal to more
than half the entire
stimulus ackavﬁ
passed in LGOQ to
fuel investments in
infrastructure, education, renewable

energy, and health over the course of

the following decade.”

Accmdmgﬁ to Windfall, “Moody’s
Analytics . . . calculated that more
than a quarter of a million jobs
were directly created by oil- and
gas—related industries between 2006
and cafiy 2015, with most stem-
ming from the shale gas and tight
oil sectors” But the uldmate job
growth was much larger than that,
O'Sullivan notes. “Bach of these
directly created jobs was estimated
to have spurred another 3.4 related
jobs, making a total of over one mil-
,obs ateributable to the
boom. These new jobs were roughly

hon rnew

cquivalent to half the number of

American manufacturing jobs lost
from December 2007 to June 2609,

Fracking spurred GDP
growth while expanding
American influence in
foreign affairs

In the [iterature

the official 1,cngth of the recession,
accor&ing to the National Bureau of
Economic Research.”

aders  should understand
that the focus of Windfall is
on the gﬁopoiiticai conse-
of the United States’ uncon-
ventional energy boom, inciuding
the decline of Russian ]cvcragc over
Europe and Ukraine, making China

GuLTCCs

comfortable with energy markets
rather than supporting rogue regimes
to acquire energy, and the taming
(somewhat) of OPEC.

Now that both shale gas and dght
oil are part of a global energy market,
the Unired States will still need to
encourage more countries, especially
China, w exploit their unconven-
rional resources to kccp prices in line
and the suppfy ﬂowing, while reduc-
ing carbon emissions in the case of
gas. Europe’s geology and environ-
mental politics make it unlikely on
the Continent. Yet,
even as prices drop,
OPEC, which can
bring oil production
on or off quick],y,
can impact prices in
a global market. But
the salient point of
the book is the enhancement of the
strategic position and leverage of the
United States going forward.

O’Sullivan also secks to justify
ﬁ‘afkinv to environmentalists who
sec it as (a) producing just another
tossil fuel, and (b) a mortal threat
to renewables given its low costs and
cheap price. Audr_ from some ques-
tionable claims thatr unconventional
energy led to the 2015 climate pact
betweern the Unired States and Chi-
na as well as the Paris Agreement,
she hits the mark when she nores
that “the advent of shale gas enabled
the United States to bring down its
emissions to their lowest absolute
level in twenty years. Between 2005
and 2015, U.S. CO, emissions re-
fated to the encrgy sector declined
by 12 percent.” She cites David Vie-

tor, a professor at the University of
California, San Diego, regarding the
switch from coal o natural gas in
the power industry. The impact on
U.S. emissions was “about twice the
total effect of the Kyoro Protocol
on carbon emissions in the rest of
the world, including the European
Union.” She also argues that “there
is not strong evidence to support
fears thar low fossil fuel prices will
come at the expense of continued
investment in renewables and other
alternative cncrgiﬁs,”

Windfall does not delve into any
water quality issues related to frack-
ing and unconventional energy. So
readers may want to consult publica-
tions by the Environmental Protec-
tion Agﬁncy and the American Water
Works Association on the subject.

EPA’s report “Hydraulic Fractur-
ing for Oil and Gas,” accessible at
epa.gov/histudy, offers a review and
synthesis of available scientific infor-
mation concerning the rsiationship
between hydraulic f‘i‘acmring activi-
ties and drinking water resources in
the United States. While recogniz-
ing that data gaps and uncerrainties
limit its ability to fully assess poten-
tial impacts Iocauy and nationauy,
the report does outline conditions
under which im pacts from ﬁ'acking
can be frequent or severe spills
during the handling of hydraulic
ﬁ'acturing chemicals and dischafgc
of inadequately treated wastewater
to surface water.

AN As white papm “Water and
Hydraulic Fracturing” is a concise,
well-illustrated document providing
an overview of the topic. It also pro-
vides information on the life cycle of
oil and natural gas development that
may present concerns to drinking
water utilities and ways to mitigate
risks. It is accessible ar awwa.org.

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

From: Mike Keegan [keegan@ruralwater.org]

Sent: 10/6/2017 4:16:00 PM

To: Bob Freudenthal - TN [BobFreudenthal@taud.org]; Earl McKinney - WY [emckinney@daleweaver.us]; Gary Williams -
FL [Gary. Williams@frwa. net], George Crum [gcrum@prwa com]; George Crum PAi Ex. 6 i
E Ex. 6 i George Hanson - MD! Ex. 6 James Gammill

(jgammill.orwa@gmail.com) [jgammnl orwa@gmail. com]; Jana Littlewood - AK [jana_littlewood@awps.com]; Jill
Miller - SC [Jill@scrwa.org]; Jim Mackie - NJ [jamesjmackie@comcast.net]; John Sasur - MA [jsasur@hotmail.com];
Matt Holmes - NRWA [Matt@nrwa.org]; Paul Fulgham [pfulgham @tremontoncity.com]; Randy Pleima - 1A

[h2opleima@mahaska.org]; Sam Wade [sam@nrwa.org];! Ex. 6 £; Tom Goulette - NE
Ex. 6 iWilmer Melton - NC (wmelton@kannapolisnc.gov) [wmelton@kannapolisnc.gov]; Daniel
Wilson [danielwilson@ncrwa.com]

Subject: Fwd: OIG Project: Public Notification of Drinking Water Quality

FYT - and minutes from Reno meetings should be distributed very soon.

---------- Forwarded message ----------

From: Mike Keegan <keegan@ruralwater.org>

Date: Fri, Oct 6, 2017 at 12:00 PM

Subject: Re: OIG Project: Public Notification of Drinking Water Quality

To: "Snyder, Gerry" <Snyder . Gerry@epa.gov>

Cc: "Hess, Kathryn" <Hess.Kathryn@epa.gov>, "Johnson-Davis, Tiffine" <Johnson-Davis. Tiffine@epa.gov>

Thank you for contacting us, and yes, a teleconference call would be welcome.

Mike Keegan, Analyst
National Rural Water Association
Washington, DC

As the Office of Inspector General reviews the public notification of drinking water quality as required under
the Safe Drinking Water Act, small and rural communities urge you to examine the potential for EPA required
public notifications to result in public confusion and unnecessary alarm.

We are concerned that the current EPA information is unnecessarily alarming the public regarding the safety of
their drinking water. Many violations of EPA standards are not necessarily an indication of unsafe drinking
water (i.e. a temporary exceedance for a small fraction of a part per million that is causing the public to stop
drinking their water and begin to lose trust in their local government).

For fiscal year 2014, EPA lists 2,135 maximum contaminant level (MCL) violations of DBPs standards. This
statistic 1s characterized by the following data: 477 of those exceedances include no recorded level of
contaminant; 110 of the 416 violations for the haloacetic acids standards (HAAS) are for exceedances equal to
or less than 5 parts per billion (PPB); and 174 of the total 1,252 violations for total trihalomethanes standards
(TTHMs) are for violations equal to or less than 5 PPB. It is our understanding that this category of DBP
violations requires a Tier 2 Public Notice (i.e. direct mailing of the violation to consumers with mandated
language specified by EPA) which often results in alarming the public to the point they are afraid to drink the
water. For example, after a DBP violation of two thousandths (.002) of a part per million, the local news station
in Menonimee, Michigan (WFRYV, 4/3/2015) reported, "Residents in Menominee, Michigan are Questioning the
Safety of their Drinking Water... Last week, [a consumer] got a notice in the mail saying the Menominee city
water system recently violated a drinking water standard. The supply tested high for trihalomethane, a
disinfection by-product. 'It was kind of a slap in the face when I got this and I thought, here I'm paying for a
commodity and I'm not really sure that it's safe,’ explained [the consumer]. 'l don't think I'm the only one in the
city that feels that way... I'm actually looking into getting a whole house water filtration system,' she added. 'T
don't trust our water anymore..."
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What the public wants to know most is whether there is a public health-related significant difference between
80 parts per billion and 82 parts per billion of THMs occurring in their water. Some states have been compelled
to issue additional public notices to warn consumers of the significance of EPA mandated warnings (Kentucky
Department for Environmental Protection, May 9, 2005, www.ruralwater.org/kvdbps.pdf).

Regarding the public notice requirements for communities participating in Unregulated Contaminant
Monitoring Rule (UCMR) sampling, many of these systems had detects found in each sample at every sampling
point which in turn triggered numerous notifications. This also created a lengthy CCR despite the absence of
violations in their routine monitoring and operations. Another example occurred in South Carolina during
UCMR3 where all 70 of the PWSs sampled to date had UCMR detections, thereby requiring public

notification. 68 of the 70 systems sampled had detects of strontium at a range of .31 — 1400 ug/L. No systems
detected strontium under UCMR 3 at concentrations above the current HRL of 1500 ug/L; however, all of these
systems were required to report strontium detects on their CCR.

The following statement was submitted by Chesterfield County Rural Water (SC) for consideration during the
UCMR forum in June, 2014:

COMMENTS OF CHARLES GRAY

CEO, CHESTERFIELD COUNTY RURAL WATER, SOUTH CAROLINA

ON BEHALF OF

THE SOUTH CAROLINA RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION

THE NATIONAL RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

FORUM ON UNREGULATED CONTAMINANT MONITORING RULE (UCMR)
JUNE 25, 2014

Good afternoon, I am Charles Gray, the chief executive office of Chesterfield County Rural Water in
Chestertield County in northeastern South Carolina. I appreciate the opportunity that the U.S. Environmental
Protection has provided to address this forum on Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule (UCMR) issues for
all small and rural drinking water utilities. I am providing my comments on behalf of my water utility, the
South Carolina Rural Water Association and the National Rural Water Association which represents over
28,000 communities.

Chesterfield County Rural Water has 900 miles of waterlines with 7,500 customers and additionally serves the
Towns of Pageland, Chesterfield, Ruby, and Mount Croghan.

My utility has conducted two rounds of UCMR3 monitoring which was paid for by our state Department of
Health & Environmental Control (SCDHEC). We found positive detects for the following substances:
Hexavalent Chromium (.058 — 1.0 ug/l), 1, 4 Dioxane (0.123 — 0.589 ug/l), Strontium (12 — 47 ug/l), Vanadium
(0.12 - 0.45 ug/l), Chlorate (100 — 130 ug/l) and 1, 1 Dichloroethane (38 — 38 ug/l).

On behalf of Chesterfield County Rural Water and thousands of other small water utilities, we urge the EPA to
consider the following questions and modifications to the current and future Unregulated Contaminant
Monitoring Rules:

One: These are, by definition, unregulated elements and/or compounds found in water samples. The term
“contaminant” has a negative connotation for customers when another, less alarming and more accurate term

could be used if a utility is going to be required to report findings.

Two: It is unclear and apparently undefined as to the concentration of the elements or compounds that may
cause some detrimental impact on public health. As such, it seems reporting these findings without clear
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determination of what accepted levels are considered unsafe concentrations is premature and unwarranted. It
also leaves the public without the information they most want to know; what levels of these substances are safe
or not safe. We don’t think EPA should override the locally preferred public disclosure policy without
providing this basic information to the public.

Three: Utilities were not informed as to how to address customer questions with regard to how any of these
elements or compounds were determined to make the test list nor what, if any, detrimental health consequences
might result from positive test results.

Four: Consumer Confidence Reports are intended to inform the public about the safety of their drinking water
and system operation. A system can have flawless performance and meet all the guidelines of the Safe
Drinking Water Act (SDWA), and yet have “hits” on unregulated contaminants and appear to consumers that
issues exist with system operations.

Five: Does the SDWA mandate that unregulated contaminants be reported in CCRs? If not, why was this
required? If this reporting is not required by EPA, water utilities should be allowed to publicly disclose the
information in a manner more reflective of public health relevance.

Six: We urge EPA to better inform water utilities as to why these elements/compounds were selected and to
address customer inquiries and public notifications on CCRs.

Thank you for your attention and consideration. Small and rural water utilities are eager to collaborate with the
EPA on improving the current process. We are locally governed by the public and want to ensure that federal
mandates don’t conflict with the public’s preferred disclosure policies. We appreciate the opportunity to
comment today, thank you.

Al so, EPA should declare that federally mandated "Tier 2" public notices (particularly Disinfectants and Disinfection Byproducts Rules

- DBPs) issued under the Safe Drinking Water Act are eligible for e-reporting under EPA’s January 3, 2013 policy for “CCR Rule Delivery
Options.” Adoption of this regulatory reform policy could save small and rural communities millions of dollars in public funding, provide more
timely information to the public, and allow for enhanced availability of information to the public by archiving the disclosure material on

the internet (as opposed to a one-time mailed notice). EPA’s Sate Drinking Water Information System fiscal year 2016 database lists over 30,000,000
persons in communities with Tier 2-type maximum contaminant level (MCL) or treatment technique (TT) violations with EPA drinking water

rules. A 2015 assessment by the Kansas Rural Water Association found that each Tier 2 public notice costs over $1 per customer (printing, copying
and mailing).

U.S. Senator Roger Wicker inquired about such regulatory relief to the EPA on June 11, 2015; but EPA did not directly answer the Senator's
concern (the DBPs' Tier 2 notices) and the status quo remains in place (Wicker letter and EPA reply).

On Fri, Oct 6, 2017 at 10:55 AM, Snyder, Gerry <Snyder.Gerry@epa.gov> wrote:

Mr. Keegan,

EPA’s Office of Inspector General is conducting an evaluation to determine whether the EPA adequately
ensures that public drinking water systems notify the public as required by the public notification rule
promulgated under the Safe Drinking Water Act, such as when the systems identify contamination at unsafe
levels. The attached notification memo provides additional information about our review.

On September 7, 2017, we met with Alan Roberson, Director of the Association of State Drinking Water
Administrators, to discuss our evaluation. He suggested we talk to you regarding the standard language used
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in public notifications. Would you be available to talk with our team? We could set up a teleconference call at
your convenience preferably within the next two weeks.

Our evaluation team looks forward to your input into our evaluation.

Gerry Snyder

EPA, Office of Inspector General

303.312.6623
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Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]
Sent: 10/10/2017 8:23:04 PM

To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]
Subject: AWWA on Farm 8ill

AWWA calls for Farm Bill measures that protect drinking water sources, encourage partnerships
QOctober 10, 2017

(WASHINGTON, DC) — With excess nutrients impacting water quality nationwide, the American Water Works Association (AWWA) today urged
U.S. Congress to use the upcoming Farm Bill reauthorization to help farmers and water utilities work together to protect the nation’s drinking water.

Large algal blooms resulting from nutrients have threatened water quality throughout the country, including shutting down the drinking water supply
for the entire city of Toledo, Ohio, in 2014.

“Water utilities and farmers are eager to collaborate on projects that protect public health and the environment, reduce the cost of water treatment and
help farmers succeed,” said Tracy Mehan, AWWA executive director of government affairs. “Our nation’s farmers do heroic work to put food on the
tables of Americans every day. There’s an opportunity through the Farm Bill to encourage partnerships that allow them to meet their production

goals while protecting our nation’s drinking water.”

The U.S. Department of Agriculture provides funding to encourage implementing conservation practices on agricultural land. While these programs
have been effective at addressing a host of environmental issues, historically they have been under-utilized in tackling drinking water concerns.
AWWA 1s advocating that the reauthorized Farm Bill:

» Provide robust overall funding for the conservation title.

« Emphasize protecting water to safeguard public health.

* Expand opportunities for the Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) to work with water systems to prioritize activities in each state.
* Increase benefits for farmers who employ practices that benefit downstream water quality.

* Ensure at least 10 percent of conservation program funds, Title 2 in the Farm Bill, is focused on the protection of drinking water.

“As we work to complete a new Farm Bill in the coming year, we need to identify and provide financial and technical resources to landowners and
land managers to protect and conserve our natural resources,” said John Larson, Senior Vice President of Policy and Programs at American Farmland
Trust. “Collaboration with the American Water Works Association to identify opportunities for farmers and ranchers to protect drinking water for

communities helps to build a larger coalition of supporters for conservation and the Farm Bill.”

Innovative water utilities are already partnering with farming operations to protect their water supplies using programs such as the Environmental
Quality Incentives Program (EQIP), Conservation Stewardship Program (CSP), Agricultural Conservation Easement Program (ACEP) and the
Regional Conservation Partnership Program (RCPP). In Northwest Arkansas, an alliance of agricultural, water and environmental stakeholders
received $4.3 million from NRCS and provided another $4.3 million in local and state contributions — both cash and in-kind — to rehabilitate a river

and implement on-farm conservation practices.

“The Farm Bill currently provides the best opportunity to bring significant resources to the table to protect drinking water.” said Alan Fortenberry,
CEO of Beaver Water District, Ark., a key leader in the Arkansas alliance.

In Cedar Rapids, Towa, the utility 1s working with 15 partners — including the Iowa Soybean Association — to adopt practices that protect the city’s

water supply. The partners are contributing $2.3 million in technical and financial assistance and the NRCS is providing another $2.1 million.
AWWA, the largest association of water professionals in the world, is sharing case studies that highlight agriculture-utility collaborations through its

publications, conferences and other learning opportunities. The Farm Bill work — and the broader issue of protecting water supplies — will be among

the key issues AWWA members bring to Capitol Hill next spring during the 2018 Water Matters! Fly In.
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Established in 1881, the American Water Works Association is the largest nonprofit, scientific and educational association dedicated to managing
and treating water, the world’s most important resource. With approximately 50,000 members, AWWA provides solutions to improve public health,
protect the environment, strengthen the economy and enhance our quality of life.

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

Sent: 10/2/2017 5:52:23 PM

To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Subject: Affordability as an Essential Element of Full-Cost Pricing

Attachments: Affordability and Full-Cost Pricing JAWWA Oct 2017 .pdf

Dear Colleagues,

Attached please find our article which appears in the current issue of the Journal AWWA (American Water Works
Association). It makes the case that affordability or customer assistance programs (CAPs) are essential in the
furtherance of full-cost pricing in the water utility sector. It is both a humanitarian and political imperative. The article
also reviews recent reports by EPA and the University of North Carolina on the matte.

| welcome your comments-good, bad or otherwise.
Thanks so much.

Tracy

G. Tracy Mehan, i

Executive Director, Government Affairs
American Water Works Association

{direct)
: Ex- 6 (cell)

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
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G. TRACY MEHAN Il AND IAN D. GANSLER

Addressing Affordability
as a Necessary Element
of Full-Cost Pricing

TO BRECONCILE THE NEED TO
ADEQUATELY FUND
INFRASTRUCTURE WHILE
NOT OVERBURDENING
THOSE WHO CANNOT
AFFORD RATE INCREASES,
WATER UTILITIES ARE
IMPLEMENTING CUSTOMER
ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS.

n its most recent strategic assessment of the water industry, Black &
Veatch (2016) observed that “those working in the water industry have
realized a truth that is now reaching a broader audience: Water is woe-
fully underpriced.” As readers of Journal AWWA will recall, AWWA
published its report, Buried No Longer: Confronting America’s Water
Infrastructure Challenge (AWWA Water Utility Council 2012), identifying a
trillion dollars of investments needed for both replacement and expansion of
drinking water infrastructure over two-and-a-half decades.

Yet the sector faces a paradox: water is underpriced, but it’s still expensive
(Grigg 2016). As the Black & Veatch report (2016) notes, “issues of afford-
ability” have made rate increases problematic in many communities, requir-
ing water utilities to address “challenging social issues around this matter,”
thrusting the issue into the political arena as well. This is entirely understand-
able given that, on average, water rates are increasing several times the rate
of inflation, sometimes astronomically, especially in communities under a
consent decree to compel an overhaul of their legacy combined sewer over-
flow systems. It does not matter if the cost drivers come from the wastewater,

46 MEHAN & GANSLER | OCTOBER 2017 109:10 | JOURNAL AWWA
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drinking water, or stormwater side
of the cycle—the ratepayers who
bear these costs typically see them
as a single water bill, and a rising
one at that.

STAGNANT PERSONAL INCOMES

The challenge of affordability in
the face of increasing water rates is
even more compelling in light of
overall macroeconomic trends in the
United States. A recent article by
William Galston in The Wall Street
Journal (Galston 2017) noted that
the acting commissioner of the
Bureau of Labor Statistics issued a
report with some disturbing news
for workers: “Over the past year
average hourly earnings have risen
by 2.5%. Unfortunately, the con-
sumer-price index, a standard mea-
sure of inflation, rose by 2.4%,
meaning the average worker’s pur-
chasing power hardly grew at all.”

This is no aberration but rather
part of a disturbing trend. “Since
2010 hourly wages corrected for infla-
tion have risen barely 0.5% a year,”
writes Galston. “The official statistics
back up reports that Americans are
working harder than ever just to stay
even.” While incomes have increased
since the Great Recession, it is not
due to rising wages. Americans are
simply working more hours. “Nearly
eight years after the official end of the
recession, median household incomes
aren’t much higher than they were
when the recession began, and they
remain a bit lower than in January
2000.” In sum, we are looking at a
lost two decades. No wonder water
customers, middle-income as well as
lower-income, are edgy about the
very necessary rate increases that they
are experiencing.

The water and wastewater utility
sector has realized the humanirarian
and political consequences of the
distributional impacts of inevitable
price increases—i.e., the dispropor-
tionate impact on low-income cus-
tomers, seniors or the disabled—so
it must address affordability issues
as a necessary component of its
drive for more robust and fair rates.

This is an important development,
one that must be encouraged if util-
ities are to cope with a situation
that has passed the Dawn of the
Replacement Era and is now
approaching high noon.
Fortunately, there is a movement
in the water sector to adopt afford-
ability or customer assistance pro-
grams (CADPs). Gas and electric

Again from the Black & Veatch
report (2016), “Water urilities . . .
are leveraging a combination of
payment and discount plan
options.” Of the urilities included
in this survey that have deployed
programs “to help those in need,”
35.9% use short-term and long-
term payment plan options, and
20.7% have adopted low-income

The sector faces a paradox; water Is underpriced,

but it's still expensive.

utilities commonly solicit support
for fuel or winter funds for low-
income customers usually in partner-
ship with other nonprofits (e.g., the
Salvation Army) or other local busi-
nesses or media outlets. While per-
haps not as common in the water
industry, requests for customers to
contribute to an equivalent fund for
low-income water customers are
gaining traction and will likely
become more common.

AFFORDABILITY PROGRAMS
ADOPTED BY UTILITIES

The literature provides some guid-
ance to address affordability con-
cerns. AWWA was out in front on
affordability issues when it pub-
lished Thinking Outside the Bill: A
Utility Manager’s Guide to Assisting
Low-Income Water Customers
(AWWA Water Utility Council
2014), “a concise guide to afford-
ability” and “a snapshot of tools
that utilities may use to help lower-
income customers afford their
water bills.” In this same vein, a
report from the University of North
Carolina at Chapel Hill (UNC)
describes barriers at the state level
that may need to be overcome to
establish sustainable and robust
programs that fully meet the needs
of struggling ratepayers (UNC
2017). (Note that AWWA, along
with other water associations, con-
tributed to the financing of the
UNC study and report.)

programs with discounts on fixed
charges. The rest pursue a variety
of other programs such as joint
efforts with nonprofits (8.7%) or
payment plans with principal for-
giveness (5.4%).

In its 2016 report, Drinking Water
and Wastewater Utility Customer
Assistance Programs, the US
Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA) conducted a survey of 795
utilities, finding that nearly 30% had
some form of CAP (USEPA 2016).
The survey found that of 365 identi-
fied CAPs, low-income residents
were the beneficiaries of the most
programs, with seniors, disabled
individuals, military, and individuals
facing specific hardships also eligible
for some programs.

USEPA identified five types of CAPs:

¢ Bill discount—provides con-
tinuous assistance by giving
customers a discount on
monthly, quarterly, or annual
bills. This was the most com-
mon type of CAP in the survey.

e Flexible terms—relaxes
requirements for bill payment,
including waived penalties,
lower interest, or more flexible
payment timelines.

e Lifeline rate—offers a reduced
rate for a set quantity of water
per pay period. After that
amount has been exceeded,
rates increase.

e Temporary assistance—gives
customers one-time assistance
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to help with an unexpected dif-
ficulty. Sometimes a simple
courtesy notice that a customer
is nearing service termination is
enough to avoid a shut-off.

e Water efficiency—helps homes
save water by installing low-
flow appliances or repairing
leaky pipes, thereby reducing
water use and saving money.

Funding is often the biggest chal-
lenge for a utility in setting up a
CAP. The USEPA’s review found that
nonprofit organizations were the
most common source of funding for
CAPs. USEPA recommends reaching
out to nonprofit charities for utili-
ties with tight budgets. As men-
tioned previously, some utilities ask
customers directly for voluntary
contributions, sometimes offering
“round-up” programs, allowing
customers to automatically round
up their bill to the next dollar in
order to make a donation. Soliciting
donations through fundraising is
also an option. Funding CAPs
through the regular utility budget or
adding a surcharge to customers not
facing hardships are much less com-
mon funding mechanisms, often
because of state-level limitations.
Yet where they exist, they have gen-
erally been able to fund more com-
prehensive programs.

The USEPA report highlights sev-
eral case studies of successful CAPs
already in effect. The California
Water Service Company (Cal Water),
one of the largest private water ser-
vice companies in the nation, cre-
ated California’s first CAP in 2006.
The utility’s Low Income Rate
Assistance Program (LIRA) is a bill
discount program that gives a 50%
discount on the fixed portion of the
customer’s bill. Any customers who
qualify for assistance from their
local electric utility are automati-
cally enrolled in LIRA, which
enrolls about 20% of Cal Water’s
478,000 customers. Cal Water also
has a bathroom fixture replacement
program, which provides new toi-
lets, faucets, and showerheads for
any customer enrolled in LIRA.

About 1,500 customers took
advantage of the fixture replace-
ment program in 2015,

The San Antonio Water System
(SAWS) offers an array of eight dis-
tinct CAPs. The largest of its pro-
grams is the Affordability Discount
Program, which offers a discount of

offers CAPs, where approved by
state regulators, through emergency
grants and discount payment pro-
grams. Again, where approved by
state economic regulators (public
utility commissions), American
Water offers rebates for water-saving
appliances, water audits, and even

Fortunately, there is a movement in the water

sector to adopt affordability or consumer

assistance programs.

as much as $15/month to house-
holds under 120% of the federal
poverty level. The program cur-
rently enrolls 18,000 of SAWS’s
500,000 account holders, although
42,000 are eligible but not enrolled.
SAWS is working to provide addi-
tional outreach to eligible house-
holds to increase enrollment in the
program. SAWS’s other programs
include efforts to provide courtesy
notifications and one-time assis-
tance to customers close to having
their service shut off, plumbing
assistance to fix leaking pipes, and
fee waivers for the elderly, disabled,
and domestic violence survivors.
The rotal cost of SAWS’s assistance
programs was $3.2 million in 2016,
almost 0.5% of its total revenue.
George Hawkins, chief executive
officer and general manager of the
District of Columbia Water and
Sewer Authority, provided an over-
view of his utility’s affordability or
customer assistance programs that
put to use many tools in the cus-
tomer assistance toolbox: the first
4 ccf (1 ccf = 748 gal) of water and
sewer service free for qualified cus-
tomers; 50% discounts on storm-
water or impervious surface charges;
voluntary donations from customers
administered by the Urban League;
lifeline rates; and lower fees for
smaller meters (Hawkins 2017).
American Water, an investor-
owned company that owns and
manages water and wastewater
utilities throughout the country,
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free water-saving devices to help
customers reduce costs. It has seen
a 349% increase in customer enroll-
ment in its California CAP as the
result of a ruling by the Utilities
Commission. Enrollment has
jumped from 5,477 to 19,130
(Duffy 2017).

OVERCOMING LEGAL BARRIERS

While there are many options to
structure or finance a CAP, depend-
ing on the state, the legal barriers
may be cumbersome. A new report
by the Environmental Finance
Center at UNC includes a snapshot
summary of these barriers in every
state and offers examples and
strategies on how utilities can nav-
igate this confusing framework
(UNC 2017).

UNC found that states fit into
four categories when it comes to
statutes surrounding rate-revenue-
funded CAPs. There are a small
minority of states that either explic-
itly allow or explicitly prohibit
utilities from setting up a CAP,
while most states are more ambigu-
ous. Some states have statutes that
pose potential challenges to estab-
lishing a CAP without an explicit
disallowance, while others do not
explicitly forbid it but also have no
language explicitly supporting it.

Unfortunately, there is little judi-
cial interpretation to clarify this
nebulous legal landscape. Many
states’ statutes require water service
rates to be “reasonable,” “uniform,”

ED_002061_00106699-00003



“nondiscriminatory,” or “just.”
Often the intent behind these terms
is to require utilities to charge all
customers the same rate rather than
prohibiting the use of rate revenue to
subsidize low-income customers;
however, the latter is a side effect. In
other cases, affordability programs
may have to navigate rules that were
established for entirely different pur-
poses. For example, most state con-
stitutions have “gift clauses” prohib-
iting government entities from giving
grants, subsidies, or donations to
specific individuals or corporations
to ensure public funds are used only
to promote public programs and
public welfare. Some gift clauses are
broad and may present an obstacle
for CAPs, while others have excep-
tions for gifts that serve a public pur-
pose, as CAPs certainly do.

Utilities interested in these pro-
grams should carefully review their
state laws as they design their pro-
grams. National studies such as the
UNC and USEPA affordability
reports, while helpful in framing the
major issues, are not a substitute for
a utility seeking its own legal counsel
in assessing its situation under rele-
vant state law. Such reports should

Daryani v. Rich Prairie Sewer &
Water (2006), the court ruled that
“perfect equality in establishing a
rate system [is not] expected . .. [and
the] apportionment of utility rates
among different classes of users may
only be roughly equal.” Utilities
might use this argument that differ-
ences in rates based on income are
justified, not only because it is
socially responsible but because it
helps the utility operate more effi-
ciently. However, this is a single case
from one state.

Environmental finance expert
Michael Curley has opined on the
practical benefit of assisting low-
income customers: “The benefit to
the utility of having discounts or
lower rates for low-income custom-
ers is the increased likelihood of col-
lecting payment from these custom-
ers; the subsidy makes it possible for
these customers to pay more of their
bills more regularly and promptly”
(Curley 2014).

In the face of legal challenges to
funding CAP programs, UNC rec-
ommends three courses of action if
there are statutory barriers to hav-
ing a CAP. First, if there is strong
support for these programs in the

Frequent service shut-offs and resolving bad debt

from customers who cannot afford their rates can

be more expensive for a utility than instituting a CAP

and assisting customers in paying their bills.

be used as a general introduction to
the topic of legal barriers.

Utilities can argue that CAPs are
necessary to run their operations
when they are facing laws in the gray
area. Frequent service shut-offs and
resolving bad debt from customers
who cannot afford their rates can be
more expensive for a utility than
instituting a CAP and assisting cus-
tomers in paying their bills. One of
the few cases providing legal prece-
dent on this issue was heard by the
Minnesota Court of Appeals. In

state, advocates should work to
clarify the statutes and regulations
in their state to expressly authorize
these programs. Second, stakehold-
ers should carefully review the exact
problematic language in their state
law and make sure their programs
are designed to overcome those lim-
its. For example, in states where the
limitation relates to requirements
that all customers only pay rates
linked to the cost of service, utilities
could argue, through a business
case, in court if necessary, that CAPs

are an “essential cost of running a
utility.” Third, if the first two
options do not prove successful,
utilities should create a CAP with-
out using rate revenue. For exam-
ple, funding can come through non-
profit partnerships, donations, or
voluntary bill round-ups.

State laws disallowing or dis-
couraging some types of CAP fund-
ing mechanisms may have been
drafted with good intentions.
Indeed, it seems fair that no one
should have to pay more than any-
one else for their water. In effect
this principle means that too many
people will be unable to afford safe
water. In states that do not already
allow or encourage CADPs, utilities
could work with their state legisla-
tures to convey the importance and
successes of these programs.

CONCLUSION

Focusing on the distributional
impacts of essential rate increases on
ratepayers in need is both a human-
itarian and a political imperative—
the former because it is the right
thing to do and the latter because
ignoring these citizens’ concerns gen-
erates pushback from the commu-
nity and elected officials. Affordabil-
ity programs and CAPs must be
viewed as an integral, even necessary,
part of the financial plan for every
water, wastewater, and stormwater
utility. It is all the same ratepayer.
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Message

From: Sam Wade [sam@nrwa.org]

Sent: 9/11/2017 1:09:47 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: Low water pressure

Good morning Sarah:

| hope all is well in your part of the world and wish you were also coming to the annual
conference in Reno. | wanted to follow up on the low water pressure. James thinks they may
be on a private well as there are water districts, the city and a lot of private wells in the

area. If you can find what system if they are on a system, we will check into it further.

Have a great week and thanks,

Sam Wade

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00106846-00001



Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Sent: 9/5/2017 8:47:06 PM

To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Subject: The Second World War and the Environment

Attachments: Second World War and the Environment.pdf

| could not resist reviewing this book.
Tracy Mehan

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

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00106881-00001
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Hell on Earth
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The Second World War and the Environment

By G. Tracy Mehan 111

gg any people VVE‘EHCSSCC{
s E)(‘ZCT’}C}E%‘ comparab] z
. Vﬁ’ldl Renaissance pamtw
Cl‘x COH»CPUOH Oi th@ IHECI‘IIO to Vi/hl(.h
f,ht damncd WEIC COﬂS]gﬂ,Cé‘ human
bCEHgS wrm o fragmﬁnts Of H€Sh &Hd

bone; cities blasted into rubble; or-

dered communities sundered into dis-
pcrss& human partidcs,” writes British
historian Max Hastings in his 2011
work fnfemﬁ: The World Ar War, 1939-
7945, It was the “greatest and most
rerrible of all human cxp@ricnc@s.”

Hastings reckons that “at least 60
million were terminated by death.”
Anaverage of 27,000 pfﬁople pcrishcd
cach day between Septem-

ribbean, Asia, Africa, and the Arcric.
Edited by two Finns, Simo Laakkonen
(University of Helsinki) and Timo Vi~
orisalo {University of Turku), and one
American, Richard Tucker (Univer-
sity of Michigan), The Long Shadows.
A Global Environmental History of the
Secand World War offers chapter-length
essays by 16 authorities, mcfuclms‘r an
introduction by the cnwronmentai
historian John R. McNeill and a con-
ciuding chaptﬁr by the editors oﬁ%ring
their own hypotheses.

While the boolds subtitle limits its
scope to a history of World War II, it

acty aﬂy begins the story much earlier,

“extractive c:conomy” is, ar all times
and places, the “excessive and unsus-
tainable use of natural systems and
natural resources in peripheral areas.”

Evan Mawdsley, general editor of
the Cambridge Hisfw’i’ of the Second
World War (2015), and one of the
contributors to The Long Shadsws,
gives the game away when he writes,
“But I also find a considerable degree
of truth in the proposition that the
most deadly war in history (in human
rerms) had only limited environmental
impact, ﬁspﬁcm]ly if seen in compara-
tive terms.” He makes an exception for
China. He also cites Professor McNeill
for the proposition that “most of the
environmental changes wrought in
combat proved Heeting” and “prepar-
ing and mobifizing for industrial war-
fare” brings more serious changes.

The historical research they pres-
ent is impressive by any measure and
merits careful attention by any student

of war and the environment.

ber 1939 and August 1945

and China, invaded by Ja-
pan two years carlier, lost
15 million lives.

It may seem unscemly,
even disrespectful of the
dead,
ronmental consequences of

Jorld War 11, given the im-
mense carpage it inflicted
on humanity (or humanity
inflicted on itself). Bur the
environment  encompasses
human beings who must rely

to discuss the envi-

The Long Shadows: & Globatl

Also, the book’s giobai per-

‘:pcctivc {(supply chains be—

Environmental History of the
Second World War. Edited
by Simo Laakkonen, Richard
Tucker, and Timo Vuerisalo.

ing just one example) wil
be most hdphﬂ to an Ang]o~

American ’ludl@ﬂ(.ff ‘«’V}li@h

Oregon
348 pages; $35.00.

State University Press;

tends to overlook, say, the
war in China going back to
1937 or the Fastern Frong,
rcgarding
British historian, Norman
Davies, that for
four years, more than 400
Red Army and German di-

visions f‘bught over a front

which another

observed

on it. So it was inevitable,
even necessary, that environmental
historians would turn their attention
to war in general and World War 1T in
particular. T}us is, after all, the Epoch
of the Anthropocene. And nothing is
more quintessendally human, and de-
structive, than war.

Now Oregon University Press has
given us what it deems to be “the first
book-length work to offer global per-
spectives on the environmental his-
tory of World War 11" a collection of
academic essays rcﬂccting the larest
research on a global scale encompass-
ing Europe, North America, the Ca-

even before World War 1, and conrin-
ues it forward into the Cold War (in
which military expenditures “sustain
an unjust world order”) and beyond.
in rruth, most of the gonmbutor:«
are  criticizing
source extraction (mining, forestry),
intensive  agriculture,  colonialism,
Stalinism, capiralism, and Widespread
reliance on chemicals, pCsticidﬁs, and
nuclear energy in war and peace. Evi-
dently, one does not mine minerals but
is “raiding” them. One does not farm,
bur engages in “agriculturai coloniza-
ton.” And, at least in the Arctic, “the

industrialization, re-

of 1,000 miles. Eighty-five
percent of the German military dead
fell there,

The costs of the war for the Soviet
Union and Belarus, and the Stalinist
ideology which mistreated the naru-
ral world as well as human beings, are
exhaustively outlined in a chapter by
Paul Josephson of Colby College. The
871-day I ,Lmnﬁmé B]od{ade is de-
scribed in excruciating detail. Again,
this is an example whcrc the human
tragedy, quite obviously, dwarfs any
concern with the environment.

Givenn the Finnish influence in
and on this collection, the three wars

6 |THE ENVIRONMENTAL FORUM
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involving Finland, the Soviet Union,
and Nazi Germany are most interest-
ing, given that the Finns had w fight

on bOY,h Mdt?‘% O{: I}J,C war b(‘ZCRUSC O{

their gcopofitica] vulnerability. They
were invaded in 1939 by the Soviets in
the Winter War, launched a counter-
attack in the Continuation War and,
finally, had to fight the Germans in
the Lapland War under the terms of its
previous surrender to the Soviers. The
Long Shadows highlighes the destruc-
tion in Finlands Arctic regions, both
human and environmental. However,
true to form, it iuéges the Finnish gov-
ernment harshly for pmhmg econom-
ic dwﬁic;pmsm in the regions after its
loss of so much territory to the Soviets.
The book also focuses on the Finn-

ish army’s non-chemical means of

ﬁvhting lice and typhus: portable dis-
infection saunas for people as well as
horses! This latter chapter, written by
Helene Laurent, a medical doctor at the
University of Helsinki, contrasts this
appr-:)ach with chemical treatments in
Germany {Zyklon, also used in the gas
chambers of concen-
tration camps) and the
United States and the
United Kingdom (o
phus vaccines, DDT).
Laurent the
world wars as lead-
ing to environmen-
tal damage “by bringing rogether the
interests of the state and the chemical
industry.” She does cite the successes
in fighting typhus in World War 1I
with DDT, etc., bur also invokes Ra-
chel Carson on the dangers of pesti-
cides without discussing the benefits.
She disp],ays litde sym parhy for those
actually fighting and surviving the war
against Nazi Germany and Imperial
Japan with the tools at their disposal.
One of the more curious essays is

588

Simo Laakonen’s on the “Environ-
mental Policies of the Third Reich.” It
seems that the WNazis, at least in times
of peace, were ‘radical environmen-
talists.” They strove to promote na-
ture conservation, but all of ¢his gave
way to industrialization once the war
commenced. Unfortunately, this con-

Ideclogy aside, the book
does offer a damning
account of conflict
resolution via arms

In the [iterature

servation ethic was gmunded in the
ideology of “blood and soil” (Blur und
Boder) and was invertwined with anti-
Semitism and various contradictory
themes of “antcivilization, antiurban-
ism, anticapitalist and antiliberalist
views into a potent, J,nysricai notion
of therural asa rcvivifying force.” The
Reich did institute some resource-
protection legisladon and even sup-
p-:)rtcd animal welfare policicss again,
until the shooting sf;arted At the heart
of the regime was “an ideological-po-
litical paradox Le., rejecting the ra-
tionalism of the hnhghtfinmcm while
embracing, fully, modern technology.

When Chinese Mationalist Gener-
al Chiang Kai-shek breached the Yel-
low River’s dikes in Henan province
in 1938, it Hooded vast areas of land
for nine years resulting in what Mi-
cha Muscoline of Oxford University
calls “the single most environmentally
iamaginv act of warfare in world his-
tory kﬂ]mg over 00,000 peaplc and
making nearly 4 million refugees. This
,souncL like a human tragedy rather
than environmental
damage, another ex-
ample of the defini-
tional chaﬂcngcs in
this area of environ-
mental history.

One of the best
chapters of the book,
but confusing in its historical method-
ology, describes Japanese imperialism
and the development of that natons
“pdagic @mpirc” dominance of
marine resources and global fisher-
ies starting in 1868. This is a classic
case of government failure, or “indus-
rrial pc)hcy causing environmental
harm. Through subsidies, diplomacy,
deiC—prﬂ&-OI‘fﬁd research, and numer-
ous other techniques, Japan came to
ruthlessly dominate and over-exploit
marine fisheries throughourt the globe.
The primary goal, historically, was for
export and foreign CXCE'&&HS"C This is
an excellent essay, but it is unblﬁar how
it supports the “1011g shadow” thesis in
that the Japanese fishing industry was
wiped out in World War Il undl the

America occupation authorities found

it necessary to restore the industry for
both domestic food supply and export.

There are also chapters in The Long
Shadpws on the war in Burma, includ-
ing the Burma and Ledo roads and for-
ests; the milirarization of Hawaii, before
and after Pearl Harbor, and its legacy of
pollution and hazardous waste sites;
and another interesting chapt@r o the
“acoustic ecology of war” and “traumat-
ic wartime sonic €xpcriﬁnces” based on
the experience of Finnish war veterans.
In addition, there are chapters on the
development of aluminum for aircraft
in the Western Hemisphere, Mexican
forests, food dmrupmm in Tanganyika,
the opening up of the circum pc;lar Arc-
tic, Canadian resource development,
and international conservation in the
post-war years. Most of the authors take
a pretty dim view of resource exrraction
and, understandably, heavy-handed co-
londalism in some cases.

ar is hell. Ir is a catastro-
phe for human beings,
animals, nature, and the
environment. The contributors to 7he
Long Shadow have marshalled impres-
sive historical materials deli neating
the human and environmental trag-
edies stemming from World War 1L
They do, however, bring a good deal
ofidcologicaf baggagc with respect to
their antagonism to industrialization
and resource extraction, whether or
not it is tethered to War—ﬁghting,

They do not ask the hard questions
as to when war, even brutal ones, are
necessary or justified. Nor do they of-
fer new ideas for inrernational law or
even ongoing military promcois w
minimize damagc in future conflicts.
Forrunately, the contributors to this
landmark book providc much his-
torical substance with tcheir ideolog}g
which should be sufficient induce-
ment for the prospective reader.

G. Tracy Mehan i is executive director for
government affairs at the American Water
Works Association and an adjunct professor
at Antonin Scalia Law School, George Mason
Liniversity. Email: tmehan@awwa.org.
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Message

From: Sam Wade [sam@nrwa.org]

Sent: 7/31/2017 2:15:50 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: Thanks - Rural Water

Good morning Sarah:

It was great to see you again at the OKC meeting and | hope you are enjoying your week
without appointments. We are very appreciative of Administrator reaching out to the local
level and his commitments to clarity and simplify the WOTUS.

| also wanted to let you know that Mike Shapiro responded to an inquiry from Senator
Barrasso regarding the allocation of the FY-17 technical assistance appropriation stating: “The
EPA will use its authority under the Safe Drinking Water Act, as amended by the Grassroots
Rural and Small Community Water Systems Assistance Act, to fund through the RFA non-
profit organizations that can provide effective technical assistance for small and rural water
systems.” Hopefully the act will ensure the funding will go where it does the most good in
assisting rural and small systems comply with the mandates of the SDWA, on-site technical
assistance.

We appreciate your availability to discuss issue and anything we can do to support the
Administrator’s efforts, we are an e-mail or phone call away.

Sincerely,

Sam Wade

National Rural Water
Saminrwa.org

Cell: Ex. 6
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Message

From: Binion, Thomas [Thomas.Binion@heritage.org]

Sent: 7/5/2017 6:28:31 PM

To: Lyons, Troy [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=15e4881c95044ab49c6c35a0f5eef67e-Lyons, Troy]

CC: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]
Subject: Re: Heritage on WOTUS
Thanks Troy!
Hi Sarah-
Please let me know if there is anyway Heritage can help in your work. | hope that you find the legal memo useful.
Would you mind helping me identify someone at the Corps who | can reach out to?

Tommy

Thomas Binion

Director, Congressionol and Executive Bronch Relations
The Heritage Foundstion

234 Mazzachusetts Avenue, NE

From: "Lyons, Troy" <lyons.troy@epa.gov>

Date: Wednesday, July 5, 2017 at 2:15 PM

To: biniont <Thomas.Binion@heritage.org>

Cc: "Greenwalt, Sarah"” <greenwalt.sarah@epa.gov>
Subject: Re: Heritage on WOTUS

Many thanks, Tommy!
| have copied Sarah Greenwalt, who is THE WOTUS expert.
Sent from my iPhone

On Jul 5, 2017, at 2:05 PM, Binion, Thomas <Thomas.Binion@heritage.org> wrote:

Hey Troy-
Hope everything is going great at EPA. | wanted to touch base on WOTUS. Exciting announcement last week.

| wanted to send along our legal memo which provides support for the Administrator’s
actions. http://www.heritage.org/sites/default/files/2017-06/LM-207 O.pdf

If you can help me get it to the right folks at EPA, | really do think it would help them. May even provide a
useful citation.

Are you working closely with anyone at the Corps on this project? | haven’t been able to trace any political
appointees there.
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Thanks for your help!

Tommy

ThomasBinion

Direcror, Congressional and Executive Branch Relations
The Heritage Foundation

214 Massachusetts Avenus, NE

heritage.org
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Message

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

Sam Wade [sam@nrwa.org]

5/20/2017 3:23:36 PM

Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]
Re: Small and rural community EPA technical assistance

Thank you Sarah

Sent via the Samsung Galaxy 57, an ATET 4G LTE smarphone

———————— Original message --------

From: "Greenwalt, Sarah" <greenwalt.sarah@epa.gov>

Date: 5/19/17 10:05 PM (GMT-06:00)

To: Mike Keegan <keegan(@ruralwater.org™>

Cc: Sam Wade <sam@nrwa.org>, Matthew Holmes <Matt@nrwa.org>
Subject: Re: Small and rural community EPA technical assistance

This is helpful, thank you. Look forward to hearing your thoughts on the LCR, and will be sure to contact you
will any questions.

Enjoy your weekend.

Sarah

Sent from my iPad

On May 17, 2017, at 12:08 PM, Mike Keegan <keegan(@ruralwater.org> wrote:

Sarah, Thank you for the meeting. To clarify a few of the items we discussed:

1.

Small and rural communities (all regulated by the EPA under the Safe Drinking Water
Act) believe that the Congressional funding for technical assistance for compliance help
would be much more helpful and beneficial if EPA were to dedicate all the $12.7 million
in the FY2017 appropriations bill to the recently authorized technical assistance in the
Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C.300j-1(e)), and we believe that EPA has such
discretion.

It is my understanding the sponsors of the recently enacted legislation (PL 114-98) that
authorized technical assistance support such an EPA decision and may write the
Administrator requesting such a decision - something similar to this draft.

We believe the criteria in the authorized technical assistance (42 U.S.C.300;-1(e)) would
allow for EPA to have a more objective and easier assessment of competing applicants
for the funding. It would be simpler for EPA to request applicants to demonstrate to what
degree does their application show “small community water systems find [it] to be the
most beneficial and effective.” For example, see previous demonstrations of small
community findings in Mississippi and Georgia.

And, we urge the Administrator to adopt a new initiative to increase the technical
assistance support to rural and small communities by, for the first time, exploiting the 2
percent set-aide provision of the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund to dedicate
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upwards of $16 million for additional "help" versus regulation for rural and small town
America. Such a new initiative could come with specific and documented environmental
improvements for drinking water safety or compliance.

I will also follow-up on our thoughts on the proposed revisions to the Lead and Copper Rule
early next week.

Thank you again and please contact any of us if we can be of any assistance.

Mike Keegan, Analyst
National Rural Water Association
Washington, DC
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Message

From: Matthew Holmes [Matt@nrwa.org]

Sent: 5/9/2017 1:40:34 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: NRWA

Attachments: EPA Approps Request FY18.pdf

Hi Sarah,

Sorry, | realized that | sent you our FY17 fact sheet yesterday — attached is FY18. Not too many changes really, but |
wanted you to have the latest.

Thanks,

Matt

From: Matthew Holmes

Sent: Monday, May 8, 2017 9:35 AM

To: 'greenwalt.sarah@epa.gov' <greenwalt.sarah@epa.gov>
Subject: Thanks from NRWA

Good morning Sarah,

Thank you and Administrator Pruitt for a great meeting last week — we appreciate the candid conversation and your
willingness to listen! Our board leadership was very impressed and encouraged.

Sam and | will be in DC next week, from Monday around noon until Thursday morning. | will be attending the “Peer-to-
Peer” meeting that is being held by OWM on Tuesday and Wednesday morning. We are open to meeting with you
anytime, aside from Wednesday from 11:00 — 1:00pm when Sam has another commitment.

| thought | would include some follow-up information on the technical assistance grant topic that we discussed at our
meeting. We are currently in final negotiations for our FY16 cooperative agreement. The Project Officer is very new —
Leslie Temple. We have been working with Mike Finn in the past as the Project Officer, as well as Maria Lopez-Carbo of
course. They are both supportive of our efforts, but haven’t really been open to addressing the structural problems with
how the RFA is set up.

If things work as they have in the past, OGWDW will release the RFA for the new round of grants this summer. I'm sure
you are aware of this, but additional information is online here: https:/fwww. ena.govidweanacitv/iraining-and-
technical-assistance-small-systems-funding.

I have attached our latest appropriations request fact sheet for the EPA program. This includes the language that Mike
Keegan referred to in the meeting, the Grassroots Rural and Small Community Water Systems Assistance Act {(Public
Low 114-98). As|mentioned in the meeting, this program is essential for small water systems. When the program was
eliminated in 2007 due to the new earmark rules, Rural Water delivered 15,000 letters of support to EPA to retain this
program. Unfortunately, the effort was continually watered down with many different organizations providing online
tools, webinars, surveys, planning efforts, etc. While this looks good on paper, it is not effective for rural and small
system personnel. | know I’'m not telling you anything you don’t already know!
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Thank you again for what you and Administrator Pruitt are doing for this Agency. EPA has a critically important mission,
and every one of our 30,000+ members recognizes this. We are long-standing partners, and we are eager to help get
things back on track. My cell number is below — please feel free to call or email at any hour if we can be of help.

Sincerely,

Matt

Matthew Holmes
Deputy CEO
National Rural Water Association

FYl — here Keegan’s contact info:

Mike Kevgan

Akt

Suite 85% East
Washdnglan, DO 2080

ationa! Ruesl Waler Ssxada..

101 Constitution See, N
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NATIONAL RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION

FY2018 APPROPRIATIONS REQUEST SUMMARY
Name of program: EPA Technical Assistance Competitive Grant Program
Appropriations bill: Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies
Senate subcommittee chairman: Senator Lisa Murkowski
Senate subcommittee ranking member: Senator Tom Udall
House subcommittee chairman: Representative Ken Calvert
House subcommittee ranking member: Representative Betty McCollum
Agency: Environmental Protection Agency
Appropriations account: Environmental Programs and Management
Authorization: Safe Drinking Water Act (42 USC 300j-1(e))
President’s budget request. TBD

Funding History
FY2013 | $12,700,000

FY2014 | $12,700,000
FY2015 | $12,700,000
FY2016 | $12,700,000
FY2017 | House and Senate reported level was $15,000,000

(However, Congress is currently operating under a
CR at FY2016 enacted levels until April 28, 2017)
FY2018 request: $15,000,000

The National Rural Water Association requests bill language (see below)
appropriating $15 million to fund the provisions of PL 114-98, the Grassroots Rural and
Small Community Water Systems Assistance Act, which continues a competitive grant
program to provide rural communities with the technical assistance necessary to improve
water quality and provide safe drinking water. Small and rural communities rely on
local/on-site technical assistance and training for compliance with federal EPA regulations,
avoiding EPA fines, and operating drinking and wastewater supplies.

Rural communities believe this is the most effective initiative to aid compliance with
the Safe Drinking Water Act and the Clean Water Act. These communities want to ensure
quality water and stay in compliance—this initiative provides them the technical resources
to do so.

Bill Language

Provided further, That of the funds included under this heading,
$15,000,000 shall be for technical assistance as authorized by 42 U.S.C. 300j-1(e)
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EPA Technical Assistance Justification: Retain the FY2017 House and Senate
reported level of $15,000,000 for FY2018

EPA Technical Assistance Authorization: The President signed the Grassroots Rural
and Small Community Water Systems Assistance Act into law (Public Law 114-98) on
December 11, 2015. The House of Representatives unanimously passed the bill on
November 30, 2015 and the Senate on June 9, 2015 (also unanimously).

The purpose of the Act is to require the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (KPA) follow
Congressional intent in administering directed appropriations to assist small and rural
communities comply with federal environmental mandates.

The Act authorizes the EPA to provide technical assistance to small and rural communities
to assist them with: (1) compliance with the myriad of federal regulations under the Safe
Drinking Water Act; (2) operation and maintenance of their water utilities; and (3) public
health protection through the supply of safe public drinking water.

Technical Assistance Demand: Small and rural communities often have a difficult time,
due to their limited customer base and technical capacities, providing safe water and
complying with federal standards. This is compounded by the fact that small and rural
communities often have lower median household incomes and higher water rates compared
to larger communities. As a result, the cost of compliance is often dramatically higher per
household.

The vast majority of U.S. drinking water supplies are small; 91% of community water
systems serve a population of fewer than 10,000 people. Some communities are so small
they rely on volunteers to operate their drinking water supply. Small communities in
violation of the federal rules are subject to $25,000 per-day civil penalties.

We are urging Congress to fully fund the Grassroots Rural and Small Community Water
Systems Assistance Act at the $15 million authorized level in the Y2018 Interior,
Environment, and Related Agencies Act.

Experience: Since 1977, NRWA has assisted small communities in providing safe drinking
water and ensure they have access to the expertise and technical assistance of an
experienced technician they trust to teach them how to comply in a simple and affordable
manner — and similarly, how to operate and maintain their treatment system.

The amount of funding through the EPA training and technical assistance program is not
enough to provide full-time positions in state associations. Small and rural communities are
struggling under new federal regulations, complex funding program applications, and
continuing mandatory operator training requirements. The allocation for this initiative
does not adequately address the needs of small and rural communities that need help as
soon as possible,
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Message

From: Hupp, Sydney [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=D50089FF LASB4C83BAAO160AFE2C33CB-HUPP, SYDNE]
Sent: 4/28/2017 1:04:19 PM

To: Sam Wade [sam@nrwa.org]

CC: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: RE: Administrator Pruitt Invitation

Attachments: External Meeting Request Form.docx

Great! Not sure of the topic of the conversation but coffee or lunch on Friday might be good. | am looping in Sarah who
will be accompanying the Administrator. If you wouldn’t mind, could you please fill out the attached form so that | may
populate the Administrator’s calendar with the details?

Thank you!

Sydney Hupp

Executive Scheduler
Office of the Adminsitrator
Ex. 6 H(c)

From: Sam Wade [mailto:sam@nrwa.org]
Sent: Thursday, April 27, 2017 12:22 PM
To: Hupp, Sydney <hupp.sydney@epa.gov>
Subject: RE: Administrator Pruitt Invitation

Thanks Sydney
We can acquire a location if that is easier.

Thanks. Sam

e

ent via the Samsung Galaxy 57, an AT&T 4G LTE smanphone

-------- Original message --------

From: "Hupp, Sydney" <hupp.svduneviepa.gov>
Date: 4/27/17 11:08 AM (GMT-06:00)

To: Sam Wade <sam{@nrwa org>

Subject: RE: Administrator Pruitt Invitation

Got it. Working on that today and will get back with you ASAP.

Thanks!

Sydney Hupp
Executive Scheduler
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Office of the Adminsitrator
' Ex. 6 {(c)

From: Sam Wade [mailtosam@nrwa.org]
Sent: Thursday, April 27, 2017 9:49 AM

To: Hupp, Sydney <huppavdney@epa.goy>
Subject: RE: Administrator Pruitt Invitation

Thank You, Sydney:

Yes, that would work great for us and we certainly appreciate your help. Just let me now the
time and location and we will be there. Lunch is also an option. We are flexible.

Thanks

Sam Wade
CEQ, National Rural Water
2915 § 13

Duncan, Okiahoma 73533
Cell: Ex. 6

From: Hupp, Sydney [mailto:hupp.sydney@epa.gov]
Sent: Thursday, April 27, 2017 8:44 AM

Cc: Dickerson, Aaron <gickerson.aaron@enpa. gov>
Subject: RE: Administrator Pruitt Invitation

Good afternoon Sam,

Thank you for reaching out! Ryan forwarded me your request and | am wondering if you might be available in Tulsa next
Friday, the 5, the meet with the administrator?

Thank you!

Sydney Hupp

Executive Scheduler

Office of the Adminsitrator
Ex. 6 i(c)

From: Jackson, Ryan

Sent: Friday, April 21, 2017 2:50 PM

To: Hupp, Sydney <hupp.sydnev@epa gov>
Subject: FW: Administrator Pruitt Invitation
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From: Sam Wade [maibtosam@nrwa.org]
Sent: Friday, April 21, 2017 2:30 PM

To: Jackson, Ryan <jackson rvan@epa.gov>
Subject: RE: Administrator Pruitt Invitation

We will make our schedule fit your availability.

Gent via the Samsung Galaxy 87, an ATET 40 LTE smartphone

———————— Original message --------

From: "Jackson, Ryan" <jackson.ryan@epa.gov>
Date: 4/21/17 1:01 PM (GMT-06:00)

To: Sam Wade <sam&nrwa. org>

Subject: Re: Administrator Pruitt Invitation

When will you guys be here?

Ryan Jackson
Chief of Staff

U.S. EPA

Ex. 6

On Apr 21, 2017, at 10:52 AM, Sam Wade <sam@nrwa.org> wrote:
Good morning Ryan:

Ihope all 1s well and you are enjoving the challenges in vour new positon which T am sure
consist of quite a few. [ wanted to forward the attached letter that request a meeting with the
Administrator by our association officers. Any help 1s appreciated.

Also, as you know James at Oklahoma Rural Water and [ are at your disposal 1f we can assist
vou in any way. Let us know when vou are back in OK and James has already committed to
buy.

Thanks for all you have done and do for rural water.

Sincerely,

Sam Wade

CEQ, National Rural Water
2915 8 13"

Duncan, Oklahoma 73533
Ex. 6 i

Cell: | Ex.6 !
samiE@nrwa org
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Click for More Informanon about the WaterPro Conference

<Scott Pruitt Invitation.docx>
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External Meeting Request Form for
Administrator E. Scott Pruitt

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

To request the Admanistrator lo allend and/or speak at your event, please complete and submat the
Jollowing form.
Today’s Date:
Meeting Date:
Meeting Time:
Requested Location (if offsite, please list address, parking instructions, etc.):
Requestor:

Purpose of the Meeting:

Background on the Meeting:

Role of the Administrator:

Attendees:

Point of Contact:
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Message

From: Mike Keegan [keegan@ruralwater.org]

Sent: 5/25/2017 9:33:50 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

CC: Sam Wade [sam@nrwa.org]; matt [matt@nrwa.org]

Subject: Re: Small and rural community EPA technical assistance

Attachments: EPA on-site technical assistance FY17_ DRAFT.docx

Hi Sarah, attached is the letter to the Administrator circulating in the Senate by Senators Wicker (MS) and
Heitkamp (ND) urging the Administrator to adopt the policy we discussed last week. We will get the final
signed version to you as soon as it is completed. We believe the leadership of the EPA authorizing and
appropriations subcommittees will be cosigners.

On Wed, May 17, 2017 at 12:07 PM, Mike Keegan <keegan(@ruralwater. org> wrote:

Sarah, Thank you for the meeting. To clarify a few of the items we discussed:

1. Small and rural communities (all regulated by the EPA under the Safe Drinking Water Act) believe that
the Congressional funding for technical assistance for compliance help would be much more helpful
and beneficial if EPA were to dedicate all the $12.7 million in the FY2017 appropriations bill to the
recently authorized technical assistance in the Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.8.C.300;-1(e)), and we
believe that EPA has such discretion.
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technical assistance support such an EPA decision and may write the Administrator requesting such a
decision - something similar to this draft.

. We believe the criteria in the authorized technical assistance (42 1J.S.C.300i-1{e)) would allow for EPA
to have a more objective and easier assessment of competing applicants for the funding. It would be
simpler for EPA to request applicants to demonstrate to what degree does their application show "small
community water systems find [it] to be the most beneficial and effective.” For example, see previous
demonstrations of small community findings in Mississippi and Georgia.

. And, we urge the Administrator to adopt a new initiative to increase the technical assistance support to
rural and small communities by, for the first time, exploiting the 2 percent set-aide provision of the
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund to dedicate upwards of $16 million for additional "help" versus
regulation for rural and small town America. Such a new initiative could come with specific and
documented environmental improvements for drinking water safety or compliance.

(8]

I

I'will also follow-up on our thoughts on the proposed revisions to the Lead and Copper Rule early next week.

Thank you again and please contact any of us if we can be of any assistance.

Mike Keegan, Analyst
National Rural Water Association
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May XX, 2017

The Honorable Scott Pruitt
Administrator

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, D.C. 20460

Dear Administrator Pruitt:

We urge you to use your discretion to award technical assistance funding under the
Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) Environmental Protection/National Priorities
provision of the fiscal year 2017 Consolidated Appropriations Act to those organizations
authorized under the Grassroots Rural and Small Community Water Systems Assistance Act (PL
114-98).

In 2011, Congress provided the EPA discretion to allocate technical assistance funding under the
Safe Drinking Water and Clean Water Acts. Since that time, funding for effective, on-site
technical assistance, which helps small and rural communities in our states comply with federal
EPA regulations and water operator certification requirements while also allowing for the
effective operation of drinking water and wastewater supplies, has been reduced significantly.

On-site technical assistance can equip small and rural communities with the resources they need
to provide safe water to residents and businesses while also meeting drinking water

standards. We believe this assistance is most effective when it comes from a trusted individual
who is willing to travel directly to the community, has technical expertise to remedy the specific
issue with existing treatment and infrastructure, and can be available on-site at any time.

In December 2015, Congress unanimously passed and the president signed the Grassroots Rural
and Small Community Water Systems Assistance Act, which directs the EPA to provide on-site
technical assistance in a manner that is most effective to small and rural communities. By
following the authorities under the Act, we are hopeful on-site technical assistance can be
reestablished in our states and ultimately make the program more effective and easier for the
EPA to implement.

Thank you for your assistance and attention to the needs of small and rural communities, and we
look forward to your reply.

Sincerely,
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Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Sent: 4/20/2017 3:27:50 PM

To: Lousberg, Macara [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=e589fdabe6374c5987d0184b43fb5c¢57-MLousber]

Subject: RE: Invitation to address AWWA's ACE '17 in Philadelphia on June 12th

I have not heard back. But, no, Macara, we would not look for a substitute for the Administrator.
Thanks.

Tracy

From: Lousberg, Macara [mailto:Lousberg.Macara@epa.gov]

Sent: Thursday, April 20, 2017 11:13 AM

To: Tracy Mehan <tmehan@awwa.org>

Cc: Threet, Derek <Threet.Derek@epa.gov>

Subject: Invitation to address AWWA's ACE '17 in Philadelphia on June 12th

Good morning Tracy. |understand that AWWA has invited Administrator Pruitt to speak at its upcoming conference in
Philadelphia, but that he is not available and has suggested that perhaps someone from OW might be able to attend and
speak on his behalf. I've been asked to reach out to you to see if this would be an acceptable alternative, or if you would
prefer to consider other options for a plenary speaker.

Macara

Macara Lousberg

Director, Water Policy Staff
U.S. EPA

1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20460

Iousherg. macara@ena.gov
202-564-5576

From: Tracy Mehan [mailio:imehan@awwa.org]

Sent: Tuesday, March 07, 2017 3:27 PM

To: Pruitt, Scott <Pruitt Scoti@epa.gov>

Cc: Jackson, Ryan <jackson.rvanfiena gov>; Shapiro, Mike <Shapiro. Mike@lepa.gov>; Grevatt, Peter
<Grevati Peter@epa.sov>; Sawyers, Andrew <SGawvers.Andrew@epa.gow>

Subject: Invitation to address AWWA's ACE '17 in Philadelphia on June 12th

Dear Administrator Pruitt,
Attached please find a letter of invitation from David LaFrance, CEO of the American Water Works Association {AWWA),

to address a plenary session of our Annual Conference & Exposition-ACE “17 in Philadelphia on June 12". Normal
attendance for this annual eventis 12,000 of our members all of whom would be interested in hearing from you as you
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take up your new responsibilities at EPA. We might mention that you could combine this address with a visit to your
regional office.

AWWA is the largest and oldest water association in the world. Our 50,000 individual members and 4,000 utility
members are on the front line in the delivery of safe drinking water to the American people.

Thank you for your consideration of our invitation. We would be honored to have you speak to ACE '17. We would also
be pleased to conduct you on a tour of the exhibition hall which is truly a remarkable demonstration of American
innovation and ingenuity in the realm of public health and environmental protection. We look forward to hearing from
you at your earliest convenience.

Sincerely,

G. Tracy Mehan, iii

Executive Director, Government Affairs
American Water Works Association
1300 Eye Street, N.W., Suite 701W
Washington, D.C. 20005-3314

............................. -

;direct)

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

Sent: 5/4/2017 1:52:06 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: FW: Invitation to Administrator Pruitt for ACE' 17

Attachments: Pruitt invitation.pdf

From: Tracy Mehan

Sent: Thursday, May 04, 2017 9:51 AM

To: 'jackson.ryan@epa.gov' <jackson.ryan@epa.gov>
Subject: Invitation to Administrator Pruitt for ACE' 17
See attachment.

Secure venue. 12,000 attendees. He can come in hit home runs on WIFIA, etc.

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
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Sovernment Alfatrs Office
1300 Bve Sireet NW

Suite TOIW

Washingion, DU 20008-3314
208628 8303
F202.888.20848

Ameriran Water Works
Association

fofy Moss Bnnaris

March 8, 2017

The Honorable Scott Pruitt
Administrator

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
1200 Pennsylvania Ave. NW

Mail Code: 1101A

Washington, DC 20460

Dear Administrator Pruitt,

The American Water Works Association (AWWA) would be honored to have you speak at the opening general
session of our annual conference in Philadelphia this June. The opening session will be 8:30-10 a.m. June 12 in
the Pennsylvania Convention Center. We would like for you to speak to our members for 15-20 minutes.

AWWA is the world’s oldest and largest non-profit science and education association serving men and women
working at drinking water utilities and related professionals across the country. Our annual conference
typically attracts about 12,000 participants. You would be invited as well to visit the exhibit floor after the
opening session, where manufacturers, consultants and related industries have on display the products and
services that help make U.S. drinking water safe and readily available.

A key interest of our membership is water infrastructure finance, and we appreciate the words of support you
have voiced in recent days for EPA programs that partner with water utilities in this area. Our annual
conference extends through Wednesday and features several hundred technical sessions on drinking water
treatment, finance, management and regulation. If you or your staff are interested in any of these sessions, we
could talk further about this. Many of the staff in your Office of Ground Water and Drinking Water are familiar
with the work of AWWA and could brief you further on who we are.

If you or your staff have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. Your key contact will be Tracy

Mehan, AWWA Executive Director for Government Affairs, atE Ex. 6 Eor tmehan@®awwa.org.

Sincerely,

o0 B
David B. LaFrance

CEQ

American Water Works Association

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00107820-00001



Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]
Sent: 4/5/2018 7:01:40 PM
To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]
Subject: New round for WIFIA!

Following enactment of the fiscal year 2018 federal budget a couple of weeks ago, the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) issued a notice of funding avallability Wednesday for the second round of loans
under the Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (WIFIA) program. The agency gstimaies that the
$63 million Congress provided to the program will provide about $5.5 billion in loan funds.

Because WIFIA funds up to 49 percent of a project’s costs, that means the WIFIA program will be able to
support about $11 billion in water infrastructure projects with FY2018 funds. Acquiring a WIFIA loan is a two-
step process. First utilities or entities send EPA a lgtigr of inlerest. That triggers a dialogue with EPA
infrastructure finance staff. Then EPA invites select utilities or entities to proceed to the formal application
phase. There are no fees for the letters of interest, but there are fees for the application. Therefore, EPA only
invites utilities or entities to proceed to application that it feels they are certain to obtain the loan.

Deadline for submitting a letter of interest is noon July 6.

EPA’s WiF A wabsita has materials such as a ¥WiFlA orogram handhook, application materials and registration

for upcoming webinars on the program. The first webinar will be 2 p.m. EDT April 23.

With $30 million in FY2017, EPA received 43 letters of interest and selected 12 of those submitting them to
proceed to the application phase. Those 12 projects will be receiving $2.3 billion in loans for $5.1 billion in
project investment.

G. Tracy Mehan, lii
Executive Director, Government Affairs
American Water Works Association

Ex. 6 i(direct)

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
Sent: 6/19/2017 6:53:29 PM

To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]
Subject: AWWA comments on TSCA in Inside EPA
Daily News

Environmentalists, Water Utilities Seek Changes In TECA Framework Rules

June 16, 2017

Environmental groups and water utility officials are looking for changes in the framework
rules due for finalization June 22 that will implement the reforms to the Toxic Substances
Control Act (TSCA) as signed into law last summer, with environmentalists fearing
industry influence and utilities looking for EPA to describe an approach to prioritization.
While the law requires EPA to consider proximity to drinking water sources when
prioritizing chemicals for risk evaluation, the draft version of the prioritization rule released
in January for public comment did not include implementation language. Such a provision
in the final rule would be novel, an industry source tells /nside EPA.

“It's part of prioritization [in the TSCA reform law] but EPA never said how they'd do it,” the
source says. How to implement the concept is more challenging than it may appear, the
source adds. “From a surface water perspective, you can do the geographic proximity . . .
but how do you deal with aquifers? It becomes very complicated.”

EPA staff have been working to meet a series of deadlines laid out in the TSCA reform
act, which requires the agency to establish a process for and begin assessing existing
chemicals, those that were on the market when the original TSCA was enacted in 1976.
The three framework rules establishing how EPA will update the TSCA inventory of
existing chemicals, prioritize those chemicals for assessment and evaluate them are
statutorily required to be finalized by the reform law's first anniversary -- June 22.

The reform law's passage regarding prioritization, TSCA section 6(b)1(A), states that EPA
must formulate by rule “a risk-based screening process, including criteria for designating
chemical substances as high-priority substances for risk evaluations or low-priority
substances for which risk evaluations are not warranted at the time.”

The statute then lays out a series of conditions EPA must consider in the screening
process, including “consideration of the hazard and exposure potential of a chemical
substance or a category of chemical substances (including consideration of persistence
and bioaccumulation, potentially exposed or susceptible subpopulations and storage near
significant sources of drinking water), the conditions of use or significant changes in the
conditions of use of the chemical substance, and the volume or significant changes in the
volume of the chemical substance manufactured or processed.”

The prioritization and evaluation rules are undergoing White House Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) review before their final release. The third rule, the inventory update

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00107922-00001



rule, has been exempted from this review because it was deemed not significant. EPA
officials say they are confident the rules will be finalized by June 22.

Source Water Protection

In comments on the draft prioritization and evaluation rules, the American Water Works
Association (AWWA), which represents drinking water utilities, explains in March 13
comments the importance of protecting drinking water sources and suggests approaches
EPA could take to address the proximity requirement.

“Accidental spills and releases into surface and groundwater sources are a continuing
hazard for water systems. Even when water systems have access to high quality sources,
chemical contamination through spill events and incremental contributions through
chemical use and/or disposal place the public’'s health at risk,” AWWA says. “To date, the
burdens of removing harmful chemicals from drinking water rests on water utilities.
Pollution prevention is a more sustainable long-term solution with a lower cost as
compared to the high cost of treatment or contaminant removal."

The group recommends that EPA use the opportunity provided by TSCA reform to
“support source water protection to safeguard America’s drinking water supply.” The group
urges the agency to consider defining the concept in the statute broadly, by, for example,
including consideration of both groundwater and surface water sources and “the volumes
of chemicals that are in transport via rail, barge and pipeline.”

AWWA also asks EPA to “consider” aquifers and water bodies that may in the future be
drinking water sources, noting that “[flresh water is an increasingly scarce resource.” The
TSCA program should weigh the concerns managed through the Safe Drinking Water Act
(SDWA) Underground Injection Control Program in both the prioritization and risk
evaluation processes, AWWA says.

The group reminds EPA it will need to craft a way to collect information regarding
chemical storage within source protection areas “to support chemical prioritization and
subsequent chemical evaluation” but warns that collecting this data may be challenging.
“At present consistent data is only available for petroleum products subject to risk
management controls under the Clean Water Act section 311 Spill Prevention, Control,
and Countermeasure (SPCC) requirements,” AWWA says.

Tier 2 reports required by the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act
(EPCRA) “may be the best available data for chemical prioritization,” the group adds. But
because this data is held by states and is submitted to the state in multiple formats,
aggregate analysis even at the local/regional level to support source water protection
planning efforts is challenging, AWWA says.

Water Treatment

AWWA continues by recommending that EPA consider “source water protection criterion .
.. throughout the risk evaluation process put forth in the proposed rule.” The group calls
on EPA, among other things, to “remove chemicals in common water treatment processes
from evaluation” because SDWA requirements already “assure that drinking water
treatment safeguards the public from toxics.”

The group also asks that EPA “determine if there are any sampling methods available for
the chemical in a water matrix. This would also include methods for remediation that could
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be implemented to mitigate exposure during a potential response action. The absence of
such information and methods was a significant limiting factor that impeded the timeliness
of response to the Freedom Industries spill in Charleston, West Virginia [in 2014] that
impacted the water supply of 300,000 residents. The risk evaluation process should take
this into account when weighing the need to promulgate a risk management measure.”
The National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA), which represents
wastewater utilities, raises similar concerns in its March 20 comments to EPA on the
prioritization rule. The group suggests that EPA add to the final rule language “to address
chemical risks that concern wastewater utilities. This language could be modeled on
California's Safer Consumer Product Regulations, which allows prioritization based on a
chemical’s adverse effects on a utility’s effluent quality, wastewater treatment processes,
and ability to reuse or recycle materials resulting from wastewater treatment, such as
recycled water and biosolids. These factors could also be specifically addressed in the
screening review process described in Section 702.7(c).”

NACWA also encourages EPA's toxics office to develop a process for collaborating with
the agency's water office when prioritizing chemicals.

OMB Meetings

Several stakeholders have already met with OMB staff to lay out their cases for the
changes they would like to see to the rules under review, which involves interagency
review as well.

Representatives of the Environmental Working Group (EWG) met with OMB staff June 7,
largely to discuss points made in the group's written comments, an EWG source says.
“We're all going to be watching very closely. We and the rest of the [non-governmental
organization (NGQO)] community are fairly happy with the rules as proposed. One thing we
did say is that we'll be looking closely at any changes, to see if any are significant
[enough] to request re-proposal,” the source says.

The source adds that EWG is concerned specifically about changes regarding how
chemicals' conditions of use are evaluated, because of industry comments.

EWG and other NGOs consider it important that EPA consider all conditions of use in
prioritization and evaluation, but many industry representatives have argued that such an
all-encompassing approach is impractical and cannot be conducted in a reasonable
amount of time.

Similarly, the American Chemistry Council (ACC) met with OMB June 6. “We met with
OMB to reiterate points from the comments we submitted to EPA regarding its proposed
rules for prioritization and risk evaluation processes under the [2016] amendments to
TSCA,” an ACC spokesman says.

And the Environmental Defense Fund (EDF) met with OMB regarding the framework rules
June 12. An EDF official declined to comment on the meeting. -- Maria Hegstad
(mhegstad@iwpnews.com)

Related News | Federal Facilities | Toxics | TSCA Tracker |
202767
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Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Sent: 4/19/2017 2:52:46 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

CC: Brent Fewell [brent.fewell@earthandwatergroup.com}

Subject: Invitation to Administrator Pruitt to speak to ACE '17 General Session in Philly

Attachments: Pruitt invitation.pdf

Sarah,

I am sorry that | will not be able to attend the meeting with Brent and others to visit with you in person. Happy to do so
at your earliest convenience.

| did want to mention that we had sent the attached invitation of March 8th to Administrator Pruitt to speak to 11,000-
12,000 AWWA members at our national meeting in Philadelphia in June. Anything you could do to encourage a positive
and expeditious decision by his scheduler would be most welcome. We are beginning to publicize the June annual
meeting and would love to include the Administrator in our promotion.

I think he could deliver a very positive and welcome message, say, on infrastructure finance and other matters.
Thank you for your consideration. |look forward to meeting you soon.
Tracy

G. Tracy Mehan, i
Executive Director, Government Affairs

ST rect
. Ex. 6 (cell)

nehan@awwa.ore

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

Mehan, AWWA Executive Director for Government Affairs, ati Ex. 6 Eor tmehan@awwa.org.

Sincerely,

o0 B
David B. LaFrance

CEQ

American Water Works Association

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00108014-00001



Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]
Sent: 4/18/2017 2:22:07 PM
To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]
Subject: Blue Skies over Beijing

Attachments: Blue Skies over Beijing.pdf

Dear Colleague,

If you have any interest in Chinese environmental issues, you may find this review essay of mine of interest.
All the best.

Tracy

G. Tracy Mehan, lil

Executive Director, Government Affairs
American Water Works Association

Ex. 6 "

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
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In the Literature

China’s New Urban Cohort
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A Journey Up and Down the Kuznets Curve

By G. Tracy Mehan 111

% hina, like the former Sovier
Union, is plagued by envi-
. ronmental challenges experi-
enced only by a country or society
where the government technically
and practica]]y OWnNSs €V€rything, fails
to respect rights of private property,
subsidizes  industrial pmduction,
obliterates the distinction between
regulated and regularor, and sup-
presses frec and open elections and
anything like a consistent rule of law,
while harboring a brutalist view of
natural resources and the environ-
ment. In such places government
failure rivals market failure as the
cause of many, if not most,

ment, and the quality of life notwith-
standing growing affluence for what
these authors call the “new urban co-
hort.” Upon these people Kahn and
thng will depend fora happy cnding
to their story, as will be seen below.
Of course the book’s title must be
ralent as aspiraﬁonai rather than de-
scriptive. In January 2013 particu-
fate marter concentration in Beijing
“reached levels of two, three, and even
four times the public health emer-
gency threshold of 250 micrograms
per cubic meter — and up to 40 times
what the World Health Organiza-

tion considers a healthy level,” report

were found to be “polluted” or “seri-
ously polluted.” And who can forget
the 16,000 dead pigs found in tribu-
taries of Shanghali’s river, the Hangpu,
the source of its tapwater?

Pollution is widespread throughout
China’s farmland. Forty-four percent of
rice samples contained poisonous fevels
of cadmium in Guangzhou, the capital
city of Guangdong Province. Accord-
ingw Kahnand thngs “Tt is estimated
that the country loses U5$3 billion per
year to soil poﬂution, and thar between
40 percent and 70 percent of Chinas
soil is already contaminared with heavy
metals and roxic fertilizers.”

But Kahn and Zheng are optimists
as well as realists and bring economists
eyes and sensibilities to the quest for
environmental progress  in China.
Fundamenually, they are wying w
pr’ovide cmpiricai, granular evidence
for the appiicaticm of an economic
theory hcralding positive environmen-

tal change by and for 1.357

environmental problems.
However, since its move
toward economic, not po-
litical, liberalizarion of the
economy  in the 1980s,
China has succeeded at least
in pmducing wealth for its
population, As  described
in Marthew E. Kahn and
Sigi Zheng’s impressive new
book Blue Skies over Beijing:
Feonomic Growth and the
Environment in Ching, over
the last 30 years, the nation’s

Blue Skies Dver Belling:
Economic Growth and the
Environment in China. By
Matthew £, Kahn and Sidgi
Zheng. Princeton University
Fress; 271 pages; $32.95.

billicn Chinese.

Many economists, seeing
the environmental degrada-
tion and ultimate renewal
of Western Europe, North
America, Japan, and other
countries, detect a link be-
tween cconomic growth and
a demand for or a Wﬂﬁngnﬁs&
to pay for environmental in-
provements, over the medi-
um or long term, at least for
some parameters. The policy
scholar Steven F Hayward

economy grew “at an amaz-

ing rate of 10 percent per year, and
the share of people living below the
poverty line fell from 84 percent to 13
percernt.

“There are still hundreds of millions
of poor households in rural China, but
hundreds of millions have also escaped
poverty,, write Kahn and Zheng,
“Over the last 30 years, the average life
expectancy at birth has increased from
66 to 73 years.”

Even with a draconian one-child
poiicy, Chings cities continue to gIOW
massively and gencrate horrendous
threats to human health, the environ-

Kahn and Zheng. Also, 12 of the 20
most polluted cities in the world are
inn China.

China is alse the world’s Iargcst
emitter of greenhouse gases, with per
capita GHG emissions growing by
186 percent between 1990 and 2010
versus the world’s 16 percent. This rep-
resents 25 percent of the worldwide
carbon dioxide poﬂution from fossil
fuels.

57 percent of the groundwaret in
198 cities was officially rated as “bad”
or “extremely bad” in 2012 while more
than 30 percent of China’s major rivers

offered a succiner descripu
tion of the theoryina provocative essay
entitled “The China Syndrome and the
Environmental Kuznets Cugve.”
According to Hayward, the Kuznets
Curve “holds that the reladonship be-
tween economic growth and environ-
mental quaiity is an inverted Uvshapc,
according to which environmental
conditions deteriorate dufing carly
stages of economic growth but begin
to Improve after a certain threshold
of wealth is achieved. The originai
Kuzners Curve was named for Nobel
laureate Simon Kuznets, who postular-
ed in the 1950s that income inc:qua],ity

8|THE ENVIRONMENTAL FORUM
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applied to the environment.”

- 53
i pr-:)vem enis.

ments w fht. environment.

million people live) are
already experiencing a
lowering” of particu-
late matrer. As incomes
rise the authors expect
that the number of ur-

banites enjoying better
air quality will increase

in 2003-]

Regardmg the Kuznets

ment in T}'J’lf OJ‘d(‘ZJ‘

I3 k>
£ CEC’&HCI’ urban environment.

first increases and then declines with
cconomic growth. In 1991 econo-
mists Gene M. Grossman and Alan B.
Krueger suggested the Kuznets Curve

Kahn and Zheng build on this
hypothesis (they cite Grossman and
Krueger in their notes) that suggests,
again, an inverse-U association exists
bctwccn per capita income and pollu-
tion: “Intuitively, this hypothesis posits
that as poor cides grow wealthier, such
economic growth causes environmental
dsgradati{)n, but that as middle-income
cities grow wealthier, such economic
growth contributes to environmental
They look carctully
at the rdationship between pfirticulate
matter air pollution and per capita in-
come, estimating that Chinese cities
whose per capita gross domestic prod-
uct is greater than $13,000 are past the
turning point, so that economic growﬂl
is positivdy associated with improve-

“Chur cityvicvd resules suggest that
33 our of 85 cities in China (where 140

Will the urban elites
provide the needed
pressure to reduce
killing air pollution?

to 368 million after 2020. This is signif-
icant because of the estimated 300,000
to 500,000 premature deaths in China

CQU‘QfCE E’)y p’irticulate matter C«’iCh year

Curve,
“This is not esoteric academic debate,”
write Kahn and Zheng. The hypoth-
esis assumes that economic growth is
both a foe and a friend to the environ-
“The evidence we
have reported in this book suggests
that young Chinese people’s concep-
tion of the (goad lite’ is very similar to
that of their U.S. and western Furo-
pean peers. Rising educational atrain-
ment and per capita income in China
will stimulate an increased demand for

ﬂmy foresee m ajor ciries, cspecia],iy

In the Literature

in coastal areas, continuing to “dein-
dustrialize as improvements in trans-
portation networks, high land prices,
high wages, and increasing environ-
mental regulation encourage dirty fac-
tories to relocate to secondary cities.
This industrial migration could cause
increased pollution levels in the cities
where heavy manufacturing grows,
but this pessimistic view imp],icitiy as-
sumes thar the new factories opening
up will be just as dirty as the old facto-
ries that are dosing.”

ssuming the Kuznets Curve
is a Va]ld concept, how does
_a country or soclety translate
€ConoImic growrh into environmental
improvements without democratic
elections and the rule of law, as has

been the case in most of the countries
tripping along the curve over the last
forty vears? In some of the more in-
teresting parts of the book, Kahn and
Zheng dcscribc the role of social me-
dia, microblogs, blogs, documentary
films posted on line
and, from time to
time, riots and civil
They
present case after case,
along with the obser-
vation that the central
Chinese government
seems to be tolerating more environ-
mental activism as a means of pressur-
ing local governments, mayors, and
even state-owned enterprises to clean
up their act.

Without using the term, the au-
thors seem to argue thar the current
regime in China is as much concerned
with irs fegitimacy as is any govern-
ment. And no longer do they have an
absolute monopoly on information as
it relates ro environmental spﬂ]s, acci-
dents, dead pigs, and clean air. The air
monitoring station at the U.S. embas-

insurrection.

sy in Beijing makes several star turns
throughout the book. Evidently, the
daily SITI0E alerts are fed into the ether
and picked up by cell phones, web-
sites, and conversationalists through—
out the city almost instantaneously.

There is also the question as
whether or not the Kuznets magic
works for other environmental mar-
ters such as water qua]iry, Panda habi-
tat, massive dam building, fisheries,
biodiverait}f, fbrcstry, solid waste, and
greenhouse gases (Hayward noted
progress in some of these arcas of re-
source management.). Nevertheless,
the hypothesis scems to be plausible
directionally.

Nothing is predestined in govern-
mental policy, and the authors outline
seven different kinds of evidence that,
over time, might contradict their “core
claim that many major cities will ex-
perience environmental improvement
in the medivm rerm,” such as the Chi-
nese central government’s returning to
a monoemaniacal focus on local GDP
growth or the Communist Party’s in-
%isring on low energy prices or sup-
pressing media coverage of environ-
mental matters. It is disturbing to note
that when citing their many interviews
with Chinese citizens or local elected
officials, the authors only use aliases or
pseudonyms.

Matthew Kahn and Sigi Zheng
provide a wealth of data, informa-
tion, and analysis of the many aspects
of the Chinese urban environment.
They also provide a menu of market-
based appmach@s which m,ighr hdp
the Chinese on their journey up and
down the Kuznets Curve. They offer
a rich, nuanced, and sophisticarcd
view of the current state of envi-
ronmental play in China and a rea-
sonable case for cautious optimism.
American readers may recall our own
history of environmental degrada—
tion when assessing the chances of
success in China. See, for instance,

Chapt@r 9 of Upton Sinclair's The

Jungle on the horrible state of Bub-

bfy Creek, a tributary of the Chicago
River circa 1906.

G, Tracy Mehan i is executive director for
government affairs at the American Water
Works Association and an adjunct professor
at the Antonin Scalia School of Law, George
Mason University. He may be contacted at
tmehan@awwa.org.
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Message

From: Mike Keegan [keegan@ruralwater.org]

Sent: 6/16/2017 6:08:01 PM

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

Attachments: EPA on-site technical assistance letter FINAL.PDF

Hello Sarah, Attached is the Senators' letter to the Administrator that we discussed, urging him to use his
discretion to help small and rural communities with EPA technical assistance. The letter clearly explains the
request. Thank you again for the consideration and we are eager to answer any questions.

Mike Keegan, Analyst
National Rural Water Association
Washington, DC

On Wed, May 17, 2017 at 12:07 PM, Mike Keegan <keegan@ruralwater.org> wrote:

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
recently authorized technical assistance in the Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C.300;-1(¢e)), and we
believe that EPA has such discretion.

2. Tt 1s my understanding the sponsors of the recently enacted legislation (PL 114-98) that authorized
technical assistance support such an EPA decision and may write the Administrator requesting such a

3. We believe the criteria in the authorized technical assistance (42 U.S.C.300i-1(e)) would allow for EPA
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

4. And, we urge the Administrator to adopt a new initiative to increase the technical assistance support to
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

IM & Cell:i " Ex®
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ted States Senate

WQSQINGTOM DO 20610

June 9, 2017

The Honorable Scott Pruitt
Administrator

1.8, Environmental Protection Agency
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

In 2011, Congress provided the EPA discretion to allocate technical assistance funding
under the Safe Drinking Water and Clean Water Acts. Since that time, funding for effective, on-
site technical assistance, which helps small and rural communities in our states comply with
federal EPA regulations and water operator certification requirements while also allowing for the
effective operation of drinking water and wastewater supplies, has been reduced si gnificantly.

On-site technical assistance can equip small and rural communities with the resources
they need to provide safe water to residents and businesses while also meeting drinking water
standards. We believe this assistance is most effective when it comes from a trusted individual
who is willing to travel directly to the community, has technical expertise to remedy the specific
issue with existing treatment and infrastructure, and can be available on-site at any time.

In December 2015, Congress unanimously passed and the president signed the Grassroots
Rural and Small Community Water Systems Assistance Act, which directs the EPA to provide
on-site technical assistance in a manner that is most effective to small and rural
communities. By following the authorities under the Act, we are hopeful on-site technical
assistance can be reestablished in our states and ultimately make the program more effective and
easier for the EPA to implement.
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Thank you for your assistance and attention to the needs of small and rural communities,
and we look forward to your reply.
Sincerely,
Wicker Heidi Heitkamp
United #ates Senator United States Senator
John Boozman
United States Senator
-, ¥ M},M
Mike Enzi T:?zmm%ﬁmI»:.ws:}rt}'l
United States Senator Unitedfstates Senator
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Message

From: Matthew Holmes [Matt@nrwa.org]

Sent: 5/8/2017 2:35:26 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: Thanks from NRWA

Attachments: EPA Approps Request.pdf; Mike Keegan.vcf

Good morning Sarah,

Thank you and Administrator Pruitt for a great meeting last week — we appreciate the candid conversation and your
willingness to listen! Qur board leadership was very impressed and encouraged.

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
you are aware of this, but additional information is online here: hitips:/fwww . ena.sov/dweapacity/training-and-
echnicab-assistance-small-systems-funding.

I have attached our latest appropriations request fact sheet for the EPA program. This includes the language that Mike
Keegan referred to in the meeting, the Grassroots Rural and Small Community Water Systems Assistance Act {Public
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
system personnel. | know I'm not telling you anything you don’t already know!

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
TUEx. 6 | www.anrwa.org

FYl — here Keegan’s contact info:
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NATIONAL RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION

FY2017 APPROPRIATIONS REQUEST SUMMARY
Name of program: EPA technical assistance competitive grant program
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
President’s budget request: $0

Funding History
FY2012 | 15,000,000
FY2013 | 12,700,000

Y2014 | 12,700,000
Y2015 | 12,700,000
Y2016 | 12,700,000

FY2017 request: $15,000,000

The National Rural Water Association requests bill language (see below)
appropriating $15 million to fund the provisions of PL. 114-98, the Grassroots Rural and
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

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00108051-00001



EPA Technical Assistance Justification: Increase from $12,700,000 to $15,000,000

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

The vast majority of U.S. drinking water supplies are small; 94 percent of community water
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
Systems Assistance Act at the $15 million authorized level in the fiscal year 2017 Interior,
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

Currently, the small and rural communities are struggling under new federal regulations,

complex funding program applications, and continuing mandatory operator training
requirements. Small and rural communities need help as soon as possible.
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Contact

Full Name: Mike Keegan

Last Name: Keegan

First Name: Mike

Company: National Rural Water Association

Business 101 Constitution Ave, NW Suite 850, East Washington, DC 20001
Address:

Business i Ex.6 |

Phone: e

Mobile Phone: Er.-.-.-.-.E.i-_mé-_m-mi

E-mail: keegan@ruralwater.org
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Message

From: Chris Hornback [CHornback@nacwa.org]

Sent: 5/12/2017 3:05:44 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: Wastewater Blending/Bypass

Attachments: WRAP Concept Paper.pdf

Sarah — We missed you on Tuesday’s call, but understand from Byron you were pulled in another direction. Attached is a
paper we shared with Byron after the call on the concept of a federally-supported water ratepayer assistance program
{we mentioned this back at our first meeting).

Also, in talking with some of the water office staff, we understand that you have been hearing some about wastewater
blending/bypass. We have a long history of working on this issue {I've personally been working on it for 15 years now)
and would like to share our perspective with you if you have time/interest.

Let me know and I'll set something up.

Have a great weekend.
-Chris

Chris Hornback | Chief Technical Officer | National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA)
(8)] Ex.6 (M Ex. 6 i chornback@nacwa.org
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An Evaluation of a Federal Water Ratepayers Assistance
Program

National Association of Clean Water Agencies
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AN EVALUATION OF ISSUES RELATED TO
A FEDERAL LOW-INCOME WATER RATEPAYER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

L INTRODUCTION

This paper outlines issues for consideration by the National Association of Clean Water Agencies
(NACWA) related to the creation of a program to provide federal assistance to help low-income
households pay water utility bills. Such a Water Ratepayer Assistance Program (WRAP) could remove
one of the greatest impediments to expanded water infrastructure investment. The analysis provides
background on the issue, including a set of principles for the develgpment of a WRAP initiative,
examines a model for the creation of a WRAP, offers an initial issue advocacy campaign plan, and makes
additional recommendations for action.

Current Challenge

Incentivize a financial environment that facilitates significant on-going infrastriicture investment at the
local level by the water utility sector through rate-setting that reflects the true cost of providing water
treatment and yet remains affordable for low-income customers;

Proposed Solution

Establish a federal incentive program of assistanceto low-income ciistomers to help pay for the true
cost of water treatment services, as is the case for other hatisehold essentials such as energy and food.

Background

The challenges facing the water sector are great. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has
estimated that:the.country faces a.backlog of hundreds of billions of dollars in unmet water
infrastructure needs. Building these projects could also create hundreds of thousands of jobs spread
acrossevery state. However..generating the necessary capital for these projects at affordable rates is
becoming increasingly difficult, especially due to the burden on low-income ratepayers.

The first phase of federal support for water infrastructure in the U.S. took the form of construction
grants, which in the second phase was converted into a construction loan program through the EPA’s
State Revolving Funds [SRFs). The WRAP initiative would add a phase-three financing tool for
infrastructure centered on ratepayer assistance instead of relying on more utility debt. A ratepayer-
centric approach to financing thatincentivizes true-cost pricing while ensuring affordability for low-
income customers will help ensure continuous investments in water treatment infrastructure by local
communities, thereby creating jobs and improving quality of life opportunities for local residents.

The Trump administration has promised a trillion-dollar infrastructure initiative, including water
projects, that would rely mainly on a package of tax credits to promote the necessary investment.
President Trump has also called for tripling funding for the SRFs. These proposals have included a
commitment to involve state and local water sector leaders in the development of a long-term plan for
the use of these funds and the creation of an interagency task force as part of the planning.
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If possible, relying on an existing program as a model for WRAP is desirable since existing programs
usually have addressed in practice many of the difficult questions of administration of a new initiative.
In addition, familiarity with the existing program can make it easier to gain legislative acceptance of new
proposals modelled after it.

Principles for a Water Rate-Payer Assistance Program

Having a set of general principles can be useful in evaluating different policy proposals. Based on input
from NACWA members, the following is a set of 10 principles that can be used to help guide the creation
of a federal WRAP initiative.

Low-Income Needs:

e Establish a ratepayer-centered model of financing.that meets affordability needs by helping low-
income customers pay for the cost of water services; and

e Design a program that properly serves all eligible populations including low-income water
customers in public housing and multi-family dwellings.

Water Sector Role:

e Remove impediments to watet utilities’ ability to make water infrastructure investments
through the rate-setting process;

e Make progress toward speeding up capital replacement ¢ycles;

e Provide for state and local control over.implementation and rate-setting;

e Encourage true-valiie of water pricing'for the services utilities provide; and

e Do not require utilities to'incur additional debt.

Economic and Administrative Considerations:

e Ensure continuous and sufficient investinent in‘local economies thereby creating jobs and
improving quality of life opportunities for local residents;

e ‘lJse a manageable administrative structure relying on or adapted from similar programs; and

e Maintain the current'federal funding mechanism of the SRFs to complement WRAP.

Principal Finding

Based on these principlesand other analysis this evaluation recommends using the Low-Income Home
Energy Assistance Program {LIHEAP} as a model for a WRAP initiative. LIHEAP, with its long history and
record of success providing assistance to low-income utility ratepayers, has a great deal of similarity to
what is needed in WRAP. An outline of legislation modelled after LIHEPA is available in Appendix 1.
Other possibilities as models that were also considered as part of this review included the Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (or SNAP, formerly known as food stamps), a revised and expanded SRF
grant program, and a Treasury supported bond program similar to the Obama administration’s Build
America Better bonds (BABs). Additional information on SNAP and BABs is included respectively in
Appendix 2 and 3 of this paper.

For various reasons, none of the other alternatives were recommended as models for WRAP. SNAP
came closest to being such a model since an entitlement program that provided assistance directly to
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DRAFT DOCUMENT - DRAFT DOCUMENT

low-income water ratepayers in the same way that food assistance is provided could be very useful in
addressing concerns about the impact of rising water utility rates on the needy. In the end, however, it
was concluded that enactment of a major, new entitlement program for low-income households was
not practical in the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the policy differences between food assistance
and help in paying water bills made the use of SNAP as a model much more complicated than modelling
after LIHEAP.

Neither a revised SRF grant program nor a new borrowing authority was recommended for this purpose
either. In the end the policy preference was for a program that made the ratepayer the focus of the
assistance instead of the water utility, even if the ratepayer might indirectly benefit from the assistance
provided to the utility. Furthermore, regarding the possibility of a revised BABs program, the view of
the water sector is that many financial options for borrowing already exist making additional borrowing
authorities a low priority compared to direct rate-payer assistance where needed.
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i LIHEAP AS A MODEL FOR WRAP

LIHEAP is a federal block grant program administered by the Department of Health and Human Services
(HHS) that provides financial assistance to low and fixed-income individuals for fuel and utility bills, as
well as gives support to low-cost weatherization and energy-related home repairs. Congress funds
LIHEAP through the annual appropriations process.

The LIHEAP statute provides two types of program funding — regular funds and emergency contingency
funds. Regular funds are allotted to states in accordance with a formula prescribed in the statute.
Contingency funds can be released state by state at the discretion of the President and the Secretary of
HHS in response to an emergency, such as a natural disaster or unexpected price spike, after submitting
a formal budget request to Congress.

LIHEAP is administered by the states, with the states having considerable flexibility in directing program
funds. In addition to this federal LIHEAP assistance, state and local governments also provide their own
assistance to those in need and are joined by charitable groups funded by'dohations. Many utilities also
provide assistance to their customers outside of LIHEAP through actions paid'for by their own revenues,
including offering discounts, fee waivers, arrearage forgiveness, and efficiency/weatherization
programs.

If structured similarly to LIHEAP, a WRAP o
initiative would be funded in the range of 51,5 Z{”Sﬁf
billion a year to $5.1 billion a year {the range of 3 :
LIHEAP’s household energy tost gssistance

500
§ 000

=]

experience). At $4 billion WRAP would cover 9“2
43% of the average cost of water and £
wastewater for all low-income households * siom

. 8500 ; \\:

across America;although that percentage P . N &\

would vary considerably from state to state. 1% % 2% e A8 %
Targe: Subsidy to Low-Income Housaholds

it is worth noting that Congressional funding for W Wastewater % Drinking Warter

LIHEAP has substantially declined:in recent
years, falling from.$5.1 billion in FY2010 to $3.4 billion in FY2016. Even at the higher level of funding,
which assisted 8.9 miillion househalds, the money was only sufficient to serve 1 in 5 eligible Americans.

Key Features of LIHEAP:

1. States administer the program in accordance with individual state plans which must be federally
approved. In administering benefits, states decide the mix and dollar range of benefits, choose
how benefits are provided (e.g. either to utilities or directly to households) and decide which
state agencies will administer the program.

2. Funds are allocated to states by a formula that factor in energy costs, typical weather, and the
number of households in need.

3. States use the funds in several ways:
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a. States help eligible households generally to meet heating and cooling costs;

b. States are also required to reserve funds to assist when households face an energy crisis
(states determine the circumstances under which they will provide assistance, such as
when a household is in danger of losing their heating or cooling due to problems with
equipment or exhaustion of a fuel supply);

c. Funds may be used for low-cost weatherization projects {limited to 15% of their
allotment, with waivers from HHS for up to 25%);

d. Funds can be used to provide services to reduce the need for energy assistance (e.g.
needs assessments and counseling, limited to 5% of the allotment); and

e. Funds may be used for program administration, limited to 10% of the allotment.

4. Income guidelines determine household eligibility, and qualifying households receiving
assistance can receive it for as long as approgriated funds are avajlable. However, because the
overall amount of money is limited, not all eligible households in fact receive funding.

5. LIHEAP statutes establish 150% of the poverty level as the maximum income level allowed in
determining LIHEAP income eligibility, except where 0% of the state median‘income is higher.
State income eligibility criteriafor LIHEAP may not be set lower than 100% of the poverty level.

6. States have points of contacts, called community.action agencies, to which potential recipients
apply for funding. . Applicants must pravide certain documentation to qualify for benefits,
including recent copies of utility bills, payroll stubs and other income documentation, and proof
of residency and citizenship.

a. The LIHEAP statute does notimpose an asset test in establishing eligibility, but states
may choose to limit eligibility based on‘tlient assets.

b. Statute requires that states conduct gutreach to eligible households, especially those
with elderly individuals'or individuals with disabilities.

¢\ States must also ensure that households with the lowest incomes, together with the
highest home energy need in relation to income, receive the highest level of assistance.

d. LIHEAP acknowledges that renters, for whom energy payments may be included in their
rent, differ from homeowners in this respect and requires that renters and homeowners
be treated equitably.

Benefits and Limitations of LIHEAP as a Model

e Impact — An adequately funded WRAP based on LIHEAP would remove a serious impediment to
utilities making water infrastructure investments that are both substantial and based on true
cost-of-service rate making. Additional analysis will be necessary, however, to determine what
specific federal guidelines should be included in any WRAP legislative to ensure this outcome.
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e Administration — LIHEAP is a successful program with a rationale and structure that could be
logically adapted for the water sector. Energy utility bills for low-income households are similar
in size to their water utility bills, and help for the latter is as reasonable as help for the former.
LIHEAP has operated for decades with a tested administrative system. WRAP eligibility for
recipients could mirror those for LIHEAP, and either EPA or HHS could administer it. However,
some issues such as the design of the state distribution formula could not be adapted as easily
and would still require additional work.

e Budget — The authority for WRAP could be created through the legislative process as a free-
standing bill or as an amendment to laws on related subjects such as those for the SRFs.
Because legislation would take the form of an authorization for an appropriation, meaning the
actual level of funding would be determined through:the annual appropriations process, no
offsetting budget cuts or new sources of revenue waould be required for enactment of the
authorizing legislation. Of course, relying on annual Congressiongl appropriations would
introduce a measure of uncertainty into the process from one year to.the next.

e Politics — The administration’s proposals on infrastructure;and increased SRF spending provide

an obvious point of entry for a WRAP plan to be made part of the administration’s infrastructure
policy review process.
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HL SUMMARY OF KEY CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is a list of key recommendations and conclusions based on the analysis contained in this
review. The key conclusions are a combination of recommended actions to be taken and suggested next
steps where additional work may be needed.

(1) The idea of a federal program designed to help low-income ratepayers pay their water bills
makes sense as a way of facilitating state and local investment in the water sector, thereby
reducing the nation’s clean water needs while creating jobs through economic activity.

(2) The best model to use for the design of a water ratepayer assistance program (WRAP) would be
the Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program known as LIHEAP. LIHEAP is a federal
program that provides financial assistance to low-ingbme households to help them pay their
energy bills, such as electric and gas utilities and home heating oil. Home energy bills are similar
in size to home water and sewer charges, and for most people both are housing necessities.

(3) Instead of Health and Human Services, it is recommended that the administrating agency for
WRAP be the Environmental Protection Agency, and that WRAP be drafted as a free-standing
measure that can be converted into an amendment to the existing EPA State Revolving Fund
authorities. This approach keeps the measure within the jurisdiction of experts knowledgeable
about the challenges of the water sector and would encolirage an integrated approach to
planning around a wider set of existing federal financial respurces for water infrastructure.

(4) Much of the existing LIHEAP statute could be directly adapted into a form suitable for a WRAP
bill. However; because of differences between the water'sector and the energy sector, there
are a few outstanding issues that would require additional research or policy decisions to
appropriately fill in‘thase blanks.. Although there are numerous smaller issues, the major six
questions are;

a. Will the'bill cover both wastewater and-drinking water?

b.. What federal'guidelinesspecific to the water sector need to be included in the
requirement for state plans to ensure that proper ratemaking and infrastructure
investment will occur as a result of the low-income ratepayer assistance?

c. How'will:the distribution formula to allocate money among the states and other
recipients be designed?

d. How will renters and multi-unit dwellings be dealt with effectively and equitably?

e. Should water efficiency measures and home repairs be encouraged as an option for
states to offer low-income households?

f.  Should incentives be included that encourage leveraging of funds from non-federal
sources to provide additional assistance to low-income ratepayers?

(5) The prospects for the enactment of WRAP legislation should be rated as plausible but difficult.
Presently in Washington, the general outlook for funding for both low-income and
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environmental programs is negative. However, WRAP is in a special situation because President
Trump has identified both increased infrastructure spending, including water projects, and
expanded SRF money as priorities. This provides an opportunity to insert the concept of a
WRAP proposal into the national debate and budget negotiations on Capitol Hill.
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Appendix 1

OUTLINE OF DRAFT WRAP LEGISLATION

Bold Language indicates more review necessary of policy issues
Italics indicate water efficiency provisions

Brackets [] indicate Win With Green annotation

Sec. 1. Title

The Water Ratepayer Assistance Program of 2017

Sec. 2. Grants

(a) Authorization for Administrator to make grants

(b) Authorization for Appropriations [amotints TBD]

{(c) Appropriations obligated in succeeding fiscal year

{d) Authorization for leveraging incentive program [Are leveraging incentives desired?]
(e)

e) Authorization for appropriation.for natural disaster or other emergency

Sec. 3. Definitions [Main question is whether both wastewater and drinking water are included]

(1) Emergency

(2) Water Burden

(3) Water Crisis

(4) Highest Home Water Needs
(5) Household

{6) Home Water

(7) Natural Disaster

(8) Poverty Level

(9} Administrator

(10) State

(11) State Median Income

Sec. 4. State Allotments

[Much of the language in this section of LIHEAP can be transferred to WRAP but this is also the section
that determines the allocation formula so more thought needs to be given to how to structure that.]

Sec. 5. Applications and Requirements

(a) State application to receive funds
(b) State certification

(1) Uses of funds

(A) Outreach activities

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00108055-00010
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(B) Intervention in water crises
(C) Water efficiency and other home repairs
(D) Plan, develop and administer the program
{2) Make payments only for
(A) Households receiving assistance from certain other programs or
(B) Meeting certain income limits
(3) Outreach activities for eligible households
(4) Coordination with similar Federal and State programs
(5) Providing the greatest assistance to households with the greatest need
(6) Designating local administrative agency
(7) Procedures for making payments directly to water suppliers
{8) Provide assurances
(A) That income eligible. households will not be excluded and
(B) That owners and renters are treated equitably

(9) Provide that riot more than 10% of funds are used for planning and administration
exceptirom non-kFederal sources

10) Fiscal control and fund accounting procedures

{11) Allow and caoperate with Federal inyestigations

(12) Public participation in plan development

(13) Administrative hearings for denied claims

{14) Data collecting and reporting

(15} Crisis situations [LIHEAP language requires clarification as to what is a water crisis]
(16) Up ta 5% of funds for household water efficiency

(17) Miscellaneous Provisions — State flexibility. Prevention of fraud, waste and abuse.
Administrator to provide model performance goals and measures.

(c) State Plans

(1) State plan provided as part of application. [Much of the LIHEAP language can be
incorporated into a WRAP bill, but water-sector specific language still needs to be
developed]

(2) Plans made publicly available

10
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(3) Model state plan format to be provided

{d) Funds spent in accordance with plan
(e) Financial and compliance audits
{(f) Treatment of assistance
{1) Assistance not considered income for State or Federal purposes
{2) Determining excess shelter expense deduction
g) State must repay funds not spent in accordance with this title
h) Comptroller General evaluation of State grant expenditures
i) Additional household eligibility specifications
j) The relationship to other Federal statutes of State progedires for verifying income
k) Up to 15% of funds for water efficiency/home repair or 25% of funds if waiver is provided
I} Funds may be used for State tax credits for water suppliers who provide rate discounts

(
(
(
(
(
(

Sec. 6. Nondiscrimination Provisions

(a) No discrimination on basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age or handicap.

{(b) In case of noncompliance the Administrator should notify the State'and.refer the matter to
the Attorney General for possible civil action

{(c) Civil action may be brought in:any appropriate 1}.5. district court

Sec. 7. Payments to States

{(a) Provides process for obligating an allotment in.a subsequent fiscal year

{b) Incentive program far leveraging non-Federal resources

(c) Water Assistance Challenge Option [This is another innovative efficiency program that
could serve gs:a model for the water sector]

Sec. 8. Withholding

(a) Administrator may withhold funds'if State does not comply with this title.
{b) Administrator may investigate uses of funds

Sec. 9. Limitatiohs on the Use of Grants

(a) Grants may not be used to improve land or to purchase, construct or improve any facility
(b) Up to 5$300,000 may be reserved by the Administrator to provide training and technical
assistance and to condiict onsite reviews of programs

Sec. 10 Studies

(a) The Administrator shall provide for the collection of data [what type for water sector
needs to be specified]
(b) Annual report to Congress

Sec. 11. Repealers and other Statutory Provisions

[Areview is needed of whether this new authority requires other statutory authorities to be modified or
repealed]
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Appendix 2

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SNAP)

The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP} is a U.S Department of Agriculture entitlement
program designed to help eligible low-income households buy food. SNAP is the contemporary version
of a food assistance program first created under the New Deal and was formerly known as the Food
Stamp Program. This forerunner of SNAP was substantially overhauled as part of welfare reform in 1996
and renamed SNAP as part of the Food and Nutrition Act of 2008.

SNAP was reauthorized most recently in 2014 in the farm bill (P.L. 113-79), as is the historical practice
for food assistance programs. In FY2016 SNAP’s budget of nearly 571 billion provided over 44 million
Americans with an average of $125.51 in food assistance every month.

ADMINISTRATION OF SNAP

The Food and Nutrition Service (FNS), an agency of the USDA, is responsible for administration of federal
nutrition programs including SNAP. One of the major changes made to SNAP as part of welfare reform
was its conversion into a state block grant program. This gives states considerablelegway in the
administration of the program, but they still must meet certain federal guidelines to qualify for support.
SNAP is typically administered by the state's social services agency, which in most cases contracts with
local providers to offer services. Each state designs.its own application process within federal guidelines
and specifies documentation requirements regarding residency, citizenship, household status, income
and other financial resources.

not alcohol, tobacco, ornon-food household items. Payments are received through an Electronic
Benefit Transfer card that works like a bank debit card. : Benefit amounts account for the size of the
household, the maximum benefitfor the fiscdlyear, and the household’s net income. Benefits are
automatically loaded into the household's account each'month on the designated date as provided in
the SNAP benefit issuance scheduleat bhitp:/ fwww Ins sda.gov/snan/snap-monthiv-benefit-issuance-
schedule.

ELIGIBILITY FOR ASSISTANCE

SHNAP elipibility and Bovedits are calculated on a household basis. Typically, a group of people who live
together and purchase and prepare meals together is considered a household, although spouses and
most children under age 22 are included in the same household even if they purchase and prepare
meals separately. People are not usually eligible for SNAP benefits if an institution gives them their
meals, although there are exceptions for elderly or disabled persons.

Financial eligibility is determined through a categorical or a traditional eligibility path. Under categorical
eligibility an automatic determination of eligibility is made if applicant participates in other means-
tested programs such as Supplemental Security Income (S5l), Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF) or General Assistance (GA).

Under federal rules for traditional eligibility, applicant households must meet a three-fold financial test
(although states have some flexibility to adjust):

12
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e Household gross monthly income must be at or below 130% of the poverty level;

e Household net monthly income must at or below the poverty level; and

¢ Asset limits are set at $2250 per household {or $3250 is it contains an elderly or disabled
member).

Certain resources are not counted towards these asset limits such as most pensions plans, a house and
lot, or in many cases a car. In addition, the resources of people who receive assistance under SSi or
TANF are not counted at all. (An important exception is in California where SSI recipients are not eligible
for SNAP benefits because they receive a State supplement to their 5SSl benefits in lieu of SNAP benefits.)

Eligibility is limited to five years and requires employment seeking efforts on the part of many of the
recipients.

OTHER ISSUES OF NOTE

e The 2014 Farm Bill changed treatment of LIHEAP in the calculation of SNAP
benefits. The 2014 Farm Bill (P.L. 113-79) requires a minimum payment of LIHEAP
before such assistance can impact the calculation of a household’s exceds shelter
deduction.

e SNAP makes grant accommodations to conduct research/studies on how to improve their
program to continue to increase the number of low-income individuals who receive assistance.
Bttpsy/Swww s usda.gov/snan/sunplemenial-nutrition-assistance-program-snag

e Food Stamp drug testing is currently impermissible as.a result of restrictions written in federal
law, but this could change, Wisconsin Governor Scott Walker called on then President-Elect
Trump to make changes to allow for drug testing to ensure individuals receiving government
benefits and seeking employment are not abusing drugs.

hitod/ fwww wiscondintapnidsts bune com/stotiinews/politics /201 701/ 1V official-foond-stamp-
drug-tests would-violate federal-low/ 98438830 ¢
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Appendix 3
FEDERALLY ASSISTED WATER INFRASTRUCTURE BONDS ({LIWIBs)

Another tool for helping water utilities meet the needs of low-income individuals and communities
could be capitalization bonds that are given special federal financial incentives. Such low-income water
infrastructure bonds (LIWIBs) could be complementary to grants from a low-income household water
assistance program (LIHWAP) by lowering the cost of borrowing to utilities when they make investments
that provide services to low-income customers.

LIWIBs could take several forms. However, they all share the trait of being paired with a federal
incentive payment, either to the issuer or the purchaser. This payment improves the appeal of the bond
to investors by allowing the utility to offer the investment at a more attractive effective rate of return
but at a lower cost to itself. The savings in the cost of borrowing to the utility allows it to make capital
improvements with a smaller impact on rates.

Other than tax-exempt bonds, there are primarily two types of federally assisted municipal bonds: (1)
tax credit bonds where the tax credit is paid directly to the purchaser; and (2) direct pay bonds where a
subsidy is paid instead to the issuer. Both types of bonds were incliided in the stimiilus bill passed in the
first year of the Obama administration and were known'as Build Amicrica Bonds {RABe A proposal for
LIWIBs could be modeled after BABs while being improved in key respects. In addition President Trump
has committed to a major, $1 trillion infrastructure tax credit plan;and, although the details are still
forthcoming, it could offer a vehicle for some typé of LIWIB.

Obama administration BABs were available for nearly two year from April 2009 until the end of 2010.
The Treasury Department estimates that over $180 billion of bonds were issued over the lifetime of the
program with costs savings to state and local governments of about 520 billion (in present value). Other
federally assisted bonds for different purposes have been proposed in the past. For example, Better
Americs Bonds topromote smart growth were included in the Clinton Administration’s FY 2001 budget,
although they were fiot enacted into law.

ADMINISTRATION OF LIiWIBs

Like BABs, LIWIBs would be administered through the Department of Treasury. For tax credit bonds,
the payment would:be made through the tax code to the purchaser and would not be subject to the
annual budget process.. In theory the bond could either be interest-bearing or interest-free, as long as
the size of the tax credit was large enough to make it appealing to investors. BABs were taxable,
interest-bearing bonds with a:35 percent tax credit for the purchaser. By contrast, Clinton’s Beiter
Arnerican Bonds were interest-free with the federal government providing a tax credit against the
investor’s other tax liabilities. In effect Better America Bonds would have allowed states and localities to
borrow for free, while the return to the investor was paid by the federal government.

With direct payment bonds, the Treasury payment could also be tied to the taxable interest paid on the
bond, but in this case the issuer would receive the payment directly. This subsidy would lower the costs
of borrowing to the bonding authority, who could offer a rate that was both affordable and compstitive
even though the bonds were not tax-exempt. {Direct pay BABs provided a payment equal to 35 percent
of the interest that was paid on the bond.) Unfortunately, direct pay bonds can be subject to the annual
appropriations process, and direct pay BABs feil victim to budset sequestration cuts starting in 2013.

14

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00108055-00015



DRAFT DOCUMENT - DRAFT DOCUMENT

Options for a direct pay LIWIB should consider whether the payments could be authorized as a
mandatory payment like Treasury bonds to avoid the uncertainty of appropriations.

The Congressional committees of authorizing jurisdiction are the Ways and Means Committee in the
House and the Finance Committee in the Senate. In addition any major plan to create federally assisted
bonds or other tax credits {including the Trump infrastructure proposal) would most likely have to go
first through the Budget Committee and be included in a Budget Resolution and a subsequent Budget
Reconciliation package. Within the executive branch, tax policy measures are usually led by Treasury
with a supporting role for the Office of Management and Budget.

ELIGIBILITY FOR ASSISTANCE

Unlike assistance programs that make payments directly to the needy, the recipients of the payments
under LIWIBs would be the investor or the utility. Nevertheless, the customer or ratepayer would still
stand to gain financially if the savings in borrowing expehses to the utility.results in lower costs to go
into the rate base than would have resulted withoutithe program.

Under BABs state and local governments could issue such bonds for any of the purposes for which they
could issue a tax-exempt bond. However, LIWIBs would have to be more narrowly targeted to ensure
that the federal assistance was promoting investments that wotulld aid the individuals in greatest need.
One way to do this might be to adapt criterig:similar to those for Recovery Zong Economic Development

significant poverty, unemployment, high rate of home foreclosures, or general distress.
BENEFITS OF LIWIBS

LIWIBs would not be meant to take the place of authorizing new grant programs or entitlement
payments that would goto heedy customers to help them pay for the cost of water services. Instead
they would be intended as a complementary policy to advance the same result. One consideration is
that no new federal erant program may be large enough by itself to cover all the expenses necessary to
provide water services'to needy comrnunities and spme borrowing may still be required. if so, LIWIBs
could offer some benefits compared to traditional tax-exempt state and local bonds.

First, the appeal of tax-exempt bonds is greatest for those classes of investors who have tax liabilities,
limiting their reach. By contrast tax credit bonds would also appeal to those classes of investors with
low or deferred tax'liabilities, since they would both earn interest and get a federal tax credit payment
whether or not they owe taxes. This expanded class brings in institutional investors, such as pension
funds, greatly enlarging potential demand for the bonds and further lowering borrowing costs. Treasury
estimates that the traditional tax-exempt bond market at about $2.8 trillion, whereas the conventional
taxable bond market is a much bigger $30 trillion.

Second, because LIWIBs would not need to go to the tax-exempt market, it would take pressure off that
market where other water infrastructure bonds would still need to go. This could result in additional
savings in the cost of borrowing for water service ratepayers, although the benefits would be indirect.

Finally, trying to get LIWIBs into the administration’s infrastructure tax credit plan could offer the best
possibility in the near-term for any action on the issue. Even if LIWIBs were not included in the final
plan, proposing it could get the conversation going on the need for federal assistance for this purpose.
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Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Sent: 4/17/2017 3:34:04 PM

To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Subject: A Hopeful Perspective on the Colorado River

Attachments: A HOPEFUL PERSPECTIVE ON THE COLORADO RIVER JAWWA . pdf

Dear Colleague,
Attached please find my review of Water Is for Fighting Over-and Other Myths About Water in the West by John Fleck. It

offers an different, upbeat perspective on water management in the Colorado River basin. It appears in the April issue
of Journal AWWA,

I hope you find it of interest.
Tracy Mehan
G. Tracy Mehan, i

Executive Director, Government Affairs
American Water Works Association

{direct)
Ex. 6 .

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
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A Hopeful Perspective on the Colorado River:
Exploding Myths About Western Water

A review of Water Is for Fighting Qver——and Other
Myths About Water in the West by John Fleck.
Published in 2016 by Istand Press (ISBMN-13: 978-1-
610-91679-0, 246 pp., $30.00).

Among political sci-
entists you will hear it
said that no longer is
governance just about
government. With
regard to water supply,
this is particularly true
in connection with the
daunting challenges of
both water quantity
and quality offered by
large-scale watershed
or basin management.
In a democratic society
with constitutional
checks and balances,
not even the federal
government—surely a major player—can simply wave a
magic wand and just “make it s0” in terms of a desired
policy or outcome.

Consider the numerous levels of government and mul-
tiplicity of societal interests, both domestic and interna-
tional, with an interest in managing the waters, say, of
the Chesapeake Bay, Great Lakes, Gulf of Mexico, and,
most notably, the Colorado River watersheds. Stakehold-
ers include federal, state, rribal, and municipal govern-
ments; foreign nations and their provinces or states; agri-
cultural organizations and irrigation districts; navigation
interests; drinking water and wastewater utilities; conser-
vation and environmental organizations; and media
organizations and the citizens whose opinions are, for
better or worse, formed by them.

With government and civil society joined at the hip,
friction and conflict are inevitable, cansing many to
quote a statement {(incorrectly} atrributed to Mark
Twain: “Whiskey is for drinking, water is for fighting
over.” John Fleck, a former journalist with the
Albuguerque Journal, challenges this lazy assumption
given the progress made in the Colorado River basin.
He is upbeat on irs prospects for overcoming future
challenges of economic and population growth, vari-
able climare, and drought. In Water Is for Fighting
Over and Other Myths About Water in the West, he

&4 MEDIA PULSE | APRIL 2017 = 109:4 | JOURNAL AWWA

categorically rejects the “genre of apocalyptic proph-
ecy,” a journalistic narrative rhat he once embraced
but has now abandoned in the face of facts, those
troublesome things.

Although Fleck “grew up with the expectation of catas-
trophe,” the droughts of the first decades of the 21st cen-
tury forced him “to grapple with a contradiction”—i.e.,
“people’s faucets were still running. Their farms were not
drying up. No city was left abandoned.” Indeed, he found
instead *a remarkable adaptabilicy.”

“When people have less water, I realized, they use less
water,” declares Fleck.

Yuma County, Ariz., used to consume 967,000 acre-ft
of water in the mid-1970s, about the same guantity
diverted to Los Angeles to the west. Half of the county’s
farmland was planted in alfalfa or cotton, lower-value,
or water-intensive crops. By the early 2010s, thar acre-
age was nearly cut in half and the amount of water con-
sumed dropped by nearly a third. However, total agri-
culrural sales rose from $900 million to $1.2 billion in
the same period.

His own town of Albuguerque “cut its per capita
water use nearly in half, and the great aquifer beneath
the city actually began rising as a result of a shift in
supply and reduced demand.” Farmers idled fields of
alfalfa and cotton, “crops that bring in low returns of
each gallon of water,” and shifted to higher-valued
pecan orchards,

Las Vegas, Nev., “a model of progressive water man-
agement,” saw its population grow by 34% from 2002 to
2013, while irs use of Colorado River water dropped by
26%, reducing per capira water consumption by 40%.

Fleck, now a writer-in-residence and adjunct profes-
sor at the University of New Mexico, does not gloss
over past conflicts, especially those between Arizona
and California {do not skip the section in his book on
the “Arizona WNavy”), or decades of litigation and the
endless posturing of politicians playing to rhe home-
town crowd. He provides excruciating detail on the
operation of the “Law of the River,” an incredible con-
figuration of federal and state law, an interstate com-
pact, international treaties and agreements, local irriga-
tion rules, and court decisions spanning decades
governing the basin. But in Fleck’s long view, these are
epiphenomena, a distraction from the basin community’s
general movement toward more water efficiency, con-
servation, fledgling warer markets, and more inclusive-
ness of tribal, Mexican, and environmental interests in
the overall management of the Colorado River.

Still, Fleck is not a believer in the inevitably of prog-
ress. He is a believer in the efficacy of human agency,
“the network” of public and private officials who have
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worked collaboratively to reconcile the inevitable ten-
sions berween the Upper and Lower Basins, as well as
the region’s economic and environmental interests. He
embraces the teachings and research of Elinor Ostrom,
the first woman to win the Nobel Prize in economics and
a proponent of community-based management of com-
mon resources, a concept that offers a solution to the
“tragedy of the commons” and an alternative to the
strictly binary choices berween government regulation or
outright privatization.

Fleck believes that “place-specific solutions” and
numerous informal meerings and conversations between
stakeholders—*cheap talk,” according to Ostrom—
create movement or critical mass for broader, more for-
mal solutions across the basin. He cites several successful
examples of this “network governance” that sets the stage
for tradirional governance—i.e., governmental or legal
solutions. The resolution of the problem of groundwater
intrusion in the West Basin of Los Angeles started with a
voluntary association of “forward-thinking individuals”—
the West Basin Water Association,

For anyone not conversant in the history of water policy
and development in the Colorado River Basin, Flecks slim
volume covers the big-ticket items from the development
of the 1922 interstate compact, to Hoover Dam, Lakes
Mead and Powell, the Central Arizona Project, Salton Sez
environmental issues, and, of course, Las Vegas. He
describes the 80-mi-long All-American Canal, a big
artificial river delivering irrigation water to the Imperial
Valley as “a spiderweb of some 1,600 miles of irrigation
ditches.” California’s State Water Project, with 701 miles
of pipelines and canals, 21 reservoirs, the ability to irri-
gate 750,000 acres of farmland, and serving 25 million
people, Fleck calls “a staggering hydraulic achieve-
ment.” The ancient Egyptian pyramids pale in compari-
son with these creations.

The Byzantine complexity of the legal and hydrological
system is presented, warts and all, without succumbing
to a fashionable hopelessness. On the contrary, the
author believes that “the network™ continues to generate
the needed “social capiral—the shared knowledge,
understandings, norms, rules, and expecrations about
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patterns of interactions that groups of individuals bring
to a recurrent activity,” as defined by Ostrom, to move
the basin forward to even grearer efficiency, conserva-
tion, and environmental justice.

Fleck opens and closes his book with the story of the
despoliation and modest efforts to restore the Colorado
River Delta, an area of more than 3,000 mi2, now sup-
plied by a mere trickle of warer. A 1905 visitor from
New York, Daniel Trembley MacDougal, found it to be
a verdant jungle “sufficient to support a vast amount of
native animal life.”

“The countless millions of young willows and poplar
shoots supply food for the beaver, which bids well to
hold cut long in the impassable bayous and swamps
against the trapper foe,” wrote MacDougal.

Aldo Leopold, writing in the 1920s, before the big
dams were built, saw “a hundred green lagoons”
teeming with life, “For rhe last word in procrastina-
tion, go travel with a river reluctant to lose his free-
dom to the sea.”

What the trappers could not accomplish, water devel-
opment did. The willows, poplars, and beavers were
obliterated. Its present predicament is the resultant vec-
tor of massive engineering and excessive consumption by
upstream users driven, at least in part, by the “nse it or
lose it” principle inherent in western water law’s Prior
Appropriation Doctrine (“first in time, first in right™}.

Yet Fleck finds hope in the 2014 “pulse™ or tempo-
rary release of more water for the benefit of the delta
and the lower reaches of the river, an experiment result-
ing from new science on seasonal hvdrologic flows; i.e.,
warer released at the right time of year can yield
extraordinary ecological benefits even with a low base
flow, as well as collaborative discussions by “the net-
work” and between the US and Mexican governments.

A new US—-Mexico agreement, “Minute 319,” pledges
further dialogue on letring more of the river run to the
sea without being completely sucked dry.

Despite all the dire apocalyptic predictions, the
American West and the Colorado River communiry
thrive in spite of the challenges of climate, drought, and
growth. So Fleck views optimism as realistic if we discard
or abandon cur beliefs in the inevitability of conflict and
crisis. He concludes his fine bock quoting a 1960 head-
line from the Los Angeles Times: “Southland’s Water
Safety Margin Placed at 10 Years” How often have we
read similar headlines over the past half-century?

“It is possible to apply a simple arithmetic wave of
the arm and say, for example, that we could bring the
system into balance if everyone used 20 percent less
water than they are consnming today,” writes Fleck.
“We know from experience from Yuma to Las Vegas to
Albuquerque, that such reductions are possible, that
water-using communities are capable of surviving and
even thriving wirth substantially less water than they use
today. But no one will voluntarily take such a step
without changes in the rules governing basin water use
as a whole ro ensure thar everyone else shares the
reductions as well-—that any pain is truly shared.”

“We need new rules,” argues Fleck. “Absent that, we
simply end up with a tragedy of the commons.”

John Fleck understands that “cheap talk™ can be price-
less and invaluable as the Colorado River communiry
aspires to govern its commons rather than fight about it.
He agrees with Winston Churchill: “To jaw-jaw is
always better than to war-war”

— (. Tracy Meban 111 is executive director of
government affairs at AWWA in Washington, D.C.;
trmeban@aunva.org.

STANDARDS OFFICIAL NOTICE

This shall constitute official notice of the availability of the following new or revised AWWA standards,
The effective date of these standards shall be the first day of the month following notification of the availability in
Journal - American Water Works Association. To obtain copies of these or any AWWA standards, contact the AWWA

Customer Service Group at (800} 926-7337.

These standards have been designated American National Standards by the American National Standards Institute.

The date of ANSI approval is shown in parentheses.

Standard for
Nylon-11-Based Polyamide
Coatings and Linings for
Steel Water Pipe and Fittings

Standard for Sodium
Chioride
{Jan. 24, 2017)

{Jan.3, 20170

‘\\ 6666 West Quincy Ave

Denver, Coloradio 80235
American P -
Water Works (303} 794-7711
Association  www.awwa.org

Standard for Wastewater
Collection System
Operation and
Management
{Mar. 2, 2017}

Standard for
Cement—Mortar Lining
of Water Pipelines
in Place—4 In. {100 mm}
and Larger
{Jan. 24, 2017}
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Message

From: Fotouhi, David [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=FEBAFOD56AAB43F8A9174B18218C1182-FOTOUHI, DA]
Sent: 5/24/2017 5:50:12 PM

To: Chris Hornback [CHornback@nacwa.org]

CC: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: RE: Wastewater Blending/Bypass

Thank you for your flexibility on this.

David Fotouhi

Deputy General Counsel

Office of General Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Tel: +1 202.564.1976
fotouhi.david@epa.gov

From: Chris Hornback [mailto:CHornback@nacwa.org]
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2017 1:41 PM

To: Fotouhi, David <fotouhi.david@epa.gov>

Cc: Greenwalt, Sarah <greenwalt.sarah@epa.gov>
Subject: RE: Wastewater Blending/Bypass

Sure. We'll have to keep it to 30 minutes, but that should be enough time. I'll update the calendar appt.

From: Fotouhi, David [mailto:fotouhi.david @epa.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2017 1:32 PM

To: Chris Hornback <CHornback@nacwa.org>

Cc: Greenwalt, Sarah <presnwaltsarsh@eno.gov>
Subject: Re: Wastewater Blending/Bypass

Chris,

Would it be possible to push our call to 4:30pm this afternoon?
Best,

David

Sent from my iPhone

On May 23, 2017, at 9:55 PM, Chris Hornback <CHornback®nacwa.org> wrote:

Yes, that should still work. I'll confirm in the morning and send around a dial in number.

Sent from my iPhone

On May 23, 2017, at 9:38 PM, Greenwalt, Sarah <greenwah sarah@epa.pov> wrote:
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Hi Chris, sorry for the delay. Does 4pm tomorrow still work for you?
Sent from my iPad

On May 22, 2017, at 9:24 AM, Chris Hornback <CHornbacki@®nacwa.org> wrote

Sarah - 4pm on Wednesday would work for us. If that time is ok, | can
send around a dial in.

Sent from my iPhone

On May 19, 2017, at 10:51 PM, Greenwalt, Sarah
<greenwalbsarah@epa.gov> wrote:

Chris,

| was sorry to miss the conversation. Thank you for the
follow up email.

I'd be grateful to hear your perspective on blending. I'm
cc'ing David Fotouhi, our Deputy General Council, who
has been working with me on this issue. | have some
availability next week on Wednesday after 2:30. Would
you guys be available then?

Sent from my iPad

On May 12, 2017, at 11:06 AM, Chris Hornback
<CHornbacki@nacwa.org> wrote:

Sarah — We missed you on Tuesday’s
call, but understand from Byron you
were pulled in another direction.
Attached is a paper we shared with
Byron after the call on the concept of a
federally-supported water ratepayer
assistance program (we mentioned this
back at our first meeting).

Also, in talking with some of the water
office staff, we understand that you
have been hearing some about
wastewater blending/bypass. We have
a long history of working on this issue
(I've personally been working on it for
15 years now) and would like to share
our perspective with you if you have
time/interest.

Let me know and I'll set something up.

Have a great weekend.
-Chris

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5
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Chris Hornback | Chief Technical Officer | National
Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA)

chornbacknacwa.org

<WRAP Concept Paper.pdf>
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Message

From: Hupp, Sydney [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=D50089FF LASB4C83BAAO160AFE2C33CB-HUPP, SYDNE]
Sent: 5/1/2017 1:58:51 PM

To: Sam Wade [sam@nrwa.org]

CC: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

Subject: RE: Rural Water Meeting in Tulsa

We can confirm! We have a private room at SMOKE Restaurant booked for noon on Friday. Address is 1542 E. 15"
Street. The Administrator will be accompanied by a staff member, Sarah Greenwalt, who is CC’ed on this email. We are
getting their flights to Tulsa booked this afternoon.

Thank you!

Sydney Hupp

Executive Scheduler
Office of the Adminsitrator
Ex. 6 i(c)

From: Sam Wade [mailto:sam@nrwa.org]
Sent: Monday, May 1, 2017 8:03 AM

To: Hupp, Sydney <hupp.sydney@epa.gov>
Subject: Rural Water Meeting in Tulsa

Good morning Sydney:

Do you think we can confirm today? | have board members who need to make plane
reservations.

Have a great week and thanks - Sam
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Message

From: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Sent: 6/6/2017 9:40:28 PM

To: Tracy Mehan [tmehan@awwa.org]

Subject: Programs and bios for ACE Infrastructure Finance Panels

Attachments: 5891 DC Bios ACEL7.pdf

If you have time at ACE, stop by on June 13. Two panels in the AM and one in the PM.

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

“Uniting the World of Water: Financing Options and Opportunities

3

& Three Session Track for Water Professionals

Survey after survey of the water sector confirms that the two top concerns are aging infrastructur
Se g an examination of curreni finar
public—private partnerships (P3s}, tackling affordability issues within water uti

in

ons experts will cover a range of R;[J!Cg inciy

ructure projecis.

e and how to fund capiial needs. During these three
Ftrends, providing a perspective from the credit agencies,
$ d.’]d demonstrating how to successfuily navigate funding

MODERATORS, KEYNOTERS & PARELISTS
Session #1 (8:30 a.m.~10:00 a.m.)

'i ){ LSRR
G. Tra mhdr ii-Executive Director of Government Affairs—AWWA

g Amer-
dent consultant

5. Tracy Mehan, il is Executiv

ican Water Works Association (l\"‘ NA

and served .
of the U.S. Water Alliance and na-
tional Source Water Protection £

ordinator for the U.S. Endowment

for Forestry and Communities.

J

Heis also an Adjunct F

George Mason Universit
Law and Carnegie Mellon U’] versi-
ty’s Heinz College.

He was Principal with The Cadmus
Group, Inc., an envircnmental
consulting firm, from 2004 to
2014, Mehan served as Assist
Administrator for Water at the U.S.
Environmentai Protection Agency from 2001-2003. He served as Environ-
mental S[ewardsM‘) Counselor to the 2004 G-8 Sum fanning Organt-
zation (2004). Mehan also served as director of the ¥ an Office of the

Great Ldkes {1993-2001) and as Associate Deputy Adm istrator of EPA in
1992, He was direcior of the Missouri Department

of Natural Resources
from 1989 1o 1992, Mehan is a graduate of Saint Louis University and its
School of Law.

J

Mehan served on the Water Science and Technology Board and now

the Committee on the Mississippi River and the Clean Water Act for the

National Research Council of the National Academies. He was also an inde-

pendent expert judge for the City Water Conservation Achievement Award
program (2006 & 2017) sponsored by The U.S. Conference of Mayors and

its Urban Water Coune

Mehan is a member of the Environmental Law Institute (ELI) and a reguiar
hook reviewer for ELI's flagship publication, The Environmental Forum.

Mehan serves on EPA's Environmental Financial Advisory Board as well
as the boards of the U.S. Water Alliance and the Great Lakes Gbserving
System. He is also a member of the Advisory Board of the Center for Envi-
ronmental Policy, School of Public Affairs, American University and a pas
member of the board of the Potomac Conservancy (2006-2014).
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OPERING KEYNOTER aND LEAD ?AE\%?:?
Anthony B. Bouchard, North American Unit President- CDM Smith

Smith, e gmm’ aﬁd Cof Mrn ction firn
firm’s Chicago o *ﬂce He has overall responsibility |
Unit that includes 100 offices in the US and Canada. Th i
provides the full range of services for the Water, Transportation,

industrial, Environmental, and Energy markets, including fully inte-
grated Alternative Project Delivery.

Bouchard has 32 years
ncein the
consulting industry,
serving in progressive

evels of management.
cently, he was the
ve Vice President of
s Americas Water
business. Prior to this,

he served in successive
rPgim:al management roles
within AFCOM directing all
busaness fine activities.

Bouchard earned a BS in
Y, an MS in mvimnmmtai

civil erqir*eering f’ﬂm C*qusm Univ
Pe;pﬂdme Jm\/El’“lt\' H
eight states and a hoard

American Academy o

the Clarkson U
Couneil.
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D a’E Rager, Principal-Rager Management C nw/t!rg‘LC and
President-Elect (20172018}, American Water Works Association

David is the Principal of Rager Management Consulting, LLC following
40 years of experience at the local government level. Prior to consulting,
wastewater and storm water utility for three
cwntles of Northern Kentucky.
rior to his position at D1, David
served for 17 years as the CEQ
of the Greater Cincinnati Water
Works. While at Cincinnati, he
worked to create a high perfor-
mance organization using strate-
gic business planning processes
that included employee work
teams, reqular customer surveys,
and focus groups for insight into
service delivery.

David was CEQ of SD1, the

d has served on the Board of
ectors for the American Water
K.

Works Association (AWWA) in a
variety of roles. From June 2012 to June 207 C, David served as Av"v"A
reasurer. He has also served r‘%f hair of the Water L ouncii “f‘ai”
of the Board of Trustees for the Wai - m*rbcr f

the International Council, and Presid
Association of Metropolitan Water /
of the National Association of £
the Water Environment Federation.

- Cincinnati and his MBA from

David received his B
Kavier Univ

S from University o

Sele znyrv—Dﬂa/ Advisory Infrastructure-KPMG LL

Alex is an expe ger with KPMG's infrastruc-
ture advisory pr af‘Ti«,«. For over a dfﬁr‘ du he has consulted public sector
clients in the US and around the world, specializing in infrastructure
finance, public-private partnerships, and economic development. Alex
is providing advisory service for
public sector clients on complex
nfrastructure projects across
a variety of infrastructure asset
classes. Alex's work in water and
wastewater sector includes advis-
the Baltimore Departmant of
c Works on alternative proj-
ect delivery across their capits
program and working on a range
of issues with Michigan's Office of
the Great Lakes.

Prior to joining KPMG, Alex was
one of the founding leaders of
Deloitte’s P3 integrated market
offering, where he played & key role in developing the practice and growing
business. He started his career in economic development, serving
ublic sector clien “romd the world for KPMG's Barents Group and later
BearingFoint.

o

)

Alexis a FINRA licensed Investment Banking Representa-
tive (VMP\ 79 and L mme Securities Agent (Series 63} and completad
his MBA at Georgetown University.

MODERATORS, HEYHOTERS & PAMELISTS
Session #2 (10:00 a.m.~11:30 a.m.)

RO G. Tracy M. Mehan, lli-Executive Director of Government A

!??

RATOR

OPENING KEYROTER AND LEAD PANELIST

Helen Cregger, Vice President of Public Finance~Moody's Investor Services

Helen Cregger is s vice president, senior credit officer with Moody's
investors Service covering local government credits wi
As a senior credit officer at Moody's, Ms. Cregger also serves on rating
committees for utility, local
government, states, transporta-
tion and other credits nationally.
Prior to Moody’s, Ms. Cregger
spent nine years as an investment

office,
governments in planning and

marketing their financings. Her
clients included the Cities of Au-
rora, Lit n, Longmont, Gre

(Rite

Y,

ver Water, and Arapshoe County

Water and Wastewater Authority.
She also worked with the State

nver Public

of Colora do for its BEST K12 (,ap""

construction program, De

and Pueblo 70 School Districts,

Schools
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banker with Piper Jaffray’s Denver

Westminster and Steamboat, Den-
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Before joining Piper Jaffray, Ms. Cregger previously spent nine years with
Moody’s. In her earlier work, Ms. Cregger served as the lead analyst for
issuers in states m fuding Arizona, Colorado, Florida and New York. Her
credit work and written reports included water and sewer, transportation
dﬂd special dIST.hC along with state revolving loan funds as well as eval-
ations of lease-hacked, revenue and general obligation credits for cities
and school districts.

Earlier in her career, Ms. Cregger worked as vith the U.S. Gen-
eral Accountability Office in the International” radp “inance and Co i

tiveness Division.
Ms. Cregger earned a B
a Master’s degree fror:

achelor’s degree from Northwestern University and
u|Umb!d University.
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effrey Hughes, Director-Environmental Finance Center, University of North
aroling

(3 L_

Jeff H ,lghes isa
University of North Carolina at Chapel |

faculty member at the School of Government at the
and is Director of the UNC
ironmental Finance Center. He
provides environmental finance
research, educational programs,
and advising services to local
governmenis, non-profits, private
companies, util,ties,. and state and
federal agencies.

Jeff has exten
as a researcher, policy analyst,
nsuitant, and prac' k*iﬂner, His
U rrcr‘t res mrrhf reas

i tive ;azo ject delivery
ance strategies;
ity, and rate set-

oo

ting. Jeff is a member of the American Water W nrks Association and the
Councit of Infrasiruciure Financing Authorities. Prior to joining UNC, Jeff
worked as an international advisor for RTI International and as the Puf

Warks and Utility Director for Chatham County, North Carolina.

_\0[“

e is currenily a member of the United States E'wvifcrumﬂma% Protection
Agency E.w;r:;nm ntal Financial Advisory Board (EFAF

isWal

. Managing Director-KWE Capital (the water arm o

4 Mr

of KKR)

Sugarman has served as Managing Director for

He led efforts to close a P3 transaction in Middletown,
014) with private capital provided by both KKR’s Infra-
structure Fund and Suez. Mr,
Sugarman has over 30 years of
experience in the environmental
services sector and has spent

the last 20y ars ’IF’(]" tiating,
develo m and ng projects
for reguldted . J P3 water
and wastewater opportunities. Mr.
Sugarman has '
ence in water utility engineering,
aper aﬂms fmanca and business
ent.

K""D Cap ta[ LLC.
PA (December 20

| Mr.

ining KWP Capita
1was a Suez Water
{formerly United Water) employee for over 25 years and - as Vice President
of Mar! ing & Stratnqv -ied the company's efforts to close a P3 trans-
action in the v!T/ B ay“r‘r‘ jwith KKR as a private equity partner. Mr.
:;uuar'r an s a representative on a steering committee for the

Alliance - an Mtw where Suez pacls resources among its subsidiaries
o "“r‘dJr‘ t commercially relevant research.

v‘v‘

Ve

Mr. Sugarman holds a B : C',M E. (Mechanical Engineer-
ing) from Tufts Univer 'tv”ad aM JA from Columbia University's Graduate
School of Business wi concemratacns in Finance as weli as Business
Economics ¢ ic Palicy.

MODERATORS, KEYHOTERS & PANELIETS
Session #3 (1:30-3:00 P.m.)

MODERATOR G Tracy M. Mehan, |

OPERING KEYNOTER AND LEAD PARELIET

Thomas Liu, Managing Partner-Bank of America/Merrill Lynch

Mr'. Liu is the Managpr of Ba'wk’ of f\'wrica Merrill Lynch's Water and
en*‘ly top-ranked in the water/
vv'mte vatu’m stdte rev nlvmqfur‘d "SRE r‘ddotrv Prior J[O[dlm ng the
ﬂr"r in 2008, he served in the
same role at UBS [r‘“estmmt
Bank. For most of his 27 year
career, Mr. Liu has specialized in
water and wastewater financ-
ings and has served numerous
municipal issuers throughout
the U.S. including the City of
Chicago (wastewater), DC Water,
Massachusetis Water Ppwumm
Authority, Metropolitan
Sewer District, New York City
cipal Water Finance Authority,
City of Philade Vater and
the Puerto Rico Agueduct and
Sewer Authority. Additionally, Mr. Liu is a well-recognized expert in SRF
lev fag%* xﬂ'astewater and drinking water) ﬂr‘?rvtmgs who has specialized
' ince the inception of SRF financings and has served as senior
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manager on over 189 financings iotaling over $20 billion for 24 SRF pro-
grams throughout the U.S. He has also advised water issuers on various
matters including public-private partnerships, program start-ups, asset
loan sales, consolidations and divestitures.

Mr. Liu has also been a featured speaker or moderator at various national
and regional water conferences. He was recently named as the interim
Chairman of U.5. EPA’s Environmenial Financial Advisory Board and
previously served as a board mer to the Council of Infrastructure
Financing Authorities

Mr. Liu received his MBA from the University of Chicage Booth School of
Business in Finance and Economics and his B.S. from the University of
Maryland in Accounting and Economics. Additionaily, he holds a Cer
Fublic Accountant license (inactive status) as weil as the NASD Series 7,
63 and 52 licenses,
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LaBuda, Deputy Commissioner omeance—Cfty ofPh."/ade/pfla PA
y LaBuds

20’%3 014,

558 has ove V'forihﬁ\«va fer i Jepif tment aﬂﬂdﬂbla
man’nemmt inc iting operations and financial reporting;
budget ,ormulatzon .-md exccuhon; and

Ms. LaBudaj ompd the

Water Department from a g
tion where th was an investment banker to P
Utility systems. Pr evmus'  Ms. LaBuda W'ked for Public F in
Management, l’l" {now PFM Financial Advisors LLC) as both a
advisor and a fixed income trader.

financia
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Usha Sharma, Treasurer-Denver Board of Water Commissione

Denver, CO

reasurer of Denver Board of Water Commissioners. In
ing Denver Water's cash opera-

Usha Sharmais the T
her current role she is responsible for lea

tion, debt and risk management programs, as well as retiremant plan.
Prior to joining Denver Water

Usha spent 15 years at Molson
Coors. As a Giobal Treasury
Manager, she was responsible for
its cash operation, invesiment
strategy, delt management, and
financial oversight of Pension

Plan.

Usha has an undergraduate

egres sychology and an MBA
and MS in Fmarcefmm Univer-
sity of Colorado. She speaks fre-
guently at industry conferences
on stich investn
pension plan, financial mmdgmert“f Wdtfll’ utifities,

strategies for publi
and enterprise risk management.
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Message

From: Chris Hornback [CHornback@nacwa.org]
Sent: 4/12/2017 8:34:21 PM
To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]
Subject: Automatic reply: Meeting

Thank you for your message. I am out of the office until Monday, April 17. T will be checking email only periodically during this time.
Pleasc expect a delayed response.

Chris Hornback
NACWA
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Message

From: Matthew Holmes [Matt@nrwa.org]

Sent: 5/16/2017 11:36:15 AM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=6¢c13775b8f424e90802669b87b135024-Greenwalt, ]

CC: Washington, Valerie [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9d031c02ce3a416dad0d421ee998d5a3-VWASHING]; Sam Wade
[sam@nrwa.org]; Mike Keegan [keegan@ruralwater.org]
Subject: Re: Thanks from NRWA

Excellent Sarah, we will be there.
Thanks,

Matthew Holmes
Deputy CEO

National Rural Water Association

On May 16, 2017, at 7:33 AM, Greenwalt, Sarah <gresnwaltsarahi®ena.gov> wrote:

Matt,

Thank you for reaching out again. I'm available at 1:30 if you guys can come over then.
Valerie, please give Matt the details on our location and getting through security.
Thanks!

Sent from my iPhone

On May 8, 2017, at 11:59 AM, Matthew Holmes <}Matt@nrwa.org> wrote:

Right after lunch works well for us {alternatively we could meet somewhere for
lunch). Another option would be to meet at our office at 101 Constitution, you are
welcome there. | will leave it to you to decide and we will make it happen.

Matt

From: Greenwalt, Sarah [mailtegreenwalt sarah@ena.zov]
Sent: Monday, May 8, 2017 10:37 AM

To: Matthew Holmes <Matt@nrwa.org>

Subject: RE: Thanks from NRWA

Matt,

Thank you for following up. As ot now, Tuesday atternoon (the 16th) 1s wide open.
Please let me know what time you guys would preter to connect.

Sarah A. Greenwalt

Senior Advisor to the Admunistrator
tor Water and Cross-Cutting Issues

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00108379-00001



U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Work: 202-564-1722| Cell: Ex. 6 :

- T T
{sreenwalt.Sarah JE0a.00Y

From: Matthew Holmes [mailto:Matt@nrwa.org]
Sent: Monday, May 8, 2017 10:35 AM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah <gresnwalbsargh@ena.gov>
Subject: Thanks from NRWA

Good morning Sarah,

Thank you and Administrator Pruitt for a great meeting last week — we appreciate the
candid conversation and your willingness to listen! Our board leadership was very
impressed and encouraged.

Sam and | will be in DC next week, from Monday around noon until Thursday morning. |
will be attending the “Peer-to-Peer” meeting that is being held by OWM on Tuesday and
Wednesday morning. We are open to meeting with you anytime, aside from
Wednesday from 11:00 — 1:00pm when Sam has another commitment.

| thought | would include some follow-up information on the technical assistance grant
topic that we discussed at our meeting. We are currently in final negotiations for our
FY16 cooperative agreement. The Project Officer is very new — Leslie Temple. We have
been working with Mike Finn in the past as the Project Officer, as well as Maria Lopez-
Carbo of course. They are both supportive of our efforts, but haven't really been open
to addressing the structural problems with how the RFA is set up.

If things work as they have in the past, OGWDW will release the RFA for the new round
of grants this summer. I'm sure you are aware of this, but additional information is
online here: hittps:/ferww epa.gov/dweapacily/iraining-and-technisal-assistance-smalk
systems-funding.

| have attached our latest appropriations request fact sheet for the EPA program. This
includes the language that Mike Keegan referred to in the meeting, the Grassroots Rural
and Small Community Water Systems Assistance Act (Public Low 114-98). As|
mentioned in the meeting, this program is essential for small water systems. When the
program was eliminated in 2007 due to the new earmark rules, Rural Water delivered
15,000 letters of support to EPA to retain this program. Unfortunately, the effort was
continually watered down with many different organizations providing online tools,
webinars, surveys, planning efforts, etc. While this looks good on paper, it is not
effective for rural and small system personnel. | know I’'m not telling you anything you
don’t already know!

Thank you again for what you and Administrator Pruitt are doing for this Agency. EPA
has a critically important mission, and every one of our 30,000+ members recognizes
this. We are long-standing partners, and we are eager to help get things back on
track. My cell number is below — please feel free to call or email at any hour if we can
be of help.

Sincerely,

Matt

Sierra Club v. EPA 18cv3472 NDCA Tier 5 ED_002061_00108379-00002



Matthew Holmes

Deputy CEO
__I_}J__cj;_i;_i_c_a__r_]_;_a__l__ﬁ_lir_z_a_l Water Association
Ex. 6 | www.nrwa.ors

FYl — here Keegan's contact info:

<image001.jpg>
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Message

From: Greenwalt, Sarah [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=6C13775B8F424E90802669B878135024-GREENWALT,]
Sent: 5/26/2017 3:41:31 PM

To: Mike Keegan [keegan@ruralwater.org]
CC: Sam Wade [sam@nrwa.org]; matt [matt@nrwa.org]
Subject: RE: Small and rural community EPA technical assistance

Thank you, Mike. I look forward to seeing the final.

Sarah A. Greenwalt
Sentor Advisor to the Administrator
tor Water and Cross-Cutting Issues

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Work: 202-564-1722 | Cell: | Ex. 6
Greenwalt.Sarah@epa.gov

From: Mike Keegan [mailto:keegan@ruralwater.org]

Sent: Thursday, May 25, 2017 5:34 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah <greenwalt.sarah@epa.gov>

Cc: Sam Wade <sam@nrwa.org>; matt <matt@nrwa.org>
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

On Wed, May 17, 2017 at 12:07 PM, Mike Keegan <keegan(@ruralwater.org> wrote:

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
recently authorized technical assistance in the Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.5.C.300;-1(¢}), and we
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
M & Cell
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Message

From: Greenwalt, Sarah [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=6C13775B8F424E90802669B87B135024-GREENWALT,]

Sent: 4/4/2017 2:15:50 PM

To: Chris Hornback [CHornback@nacwa.org]

Subject: RE: Meeting

Sorry for the delay. Checking on this now and will get something on the calendar today.

Sarah A. Greenwalt
Senior Advisor to the Administrator
for Water and Cross-Cutting Issues

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Work: 202-564-1722 | Cell:i_ __________ Ex.6 |
Greenwalt.Sarah@epa.gov

From: Chris Hornback [mailto:CHornback@nacwa.org]
Sent: Tuesday, April 4, 2017 10:11 AM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah <greenwalt.sarah@epa.gov>
Subject: RE: Meeting

Thanks Sarah. We'd like to get this nailed down as soon as possible so our members can make their travel arrangements.
Several of our key staff are out of the office next week, so if we can confirm this week that would be great.

-Chris

---------------------------------------------

(83 Ex. 6 (M) Ex. 6 i| chornback@nacwa.org

From: Greenwalt, Sarah [mailto:sreenwaltsarah@® ena.gov]
Sent: Monday, April 3, 2017 9:13 AM

To: Chris Hornback <{Hornback@nacwa.org>

Subject: RE: Meeting

I think those dates will work nicely. My assistant will schedule something concrete and confirm.
Thanks!

Sarah A. Greenwalt
Senior Advisor to the Administrator
for Water and Cross-Cutting Issues

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

CresrvwaliSanab@enngoy
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From: Chris Hornback [mailte:OHornback@ naowa.org]

Sent: Tuesday, March 28, 2017 2:11 PM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah <gresnwalt.sarahi@ena.gov>

Cc: Hupp, Sydney <hupp.sydneyi@epa.gov>; Brown, Byron <brown. byron@epa.gov>; Washington, Valerie
<Washington Valerie@epa.gov>

Subject: RE: Meeting

Sarah —

Thank you for getting back to us. We plan to bring a couple of our key leaders into town to meet with the Administrator,
so mid-April would be the earliest we could make work. Here are some potential days/times. We would request an
hour for the meeting.

April 18 —9am, 10 am, 12pm or 1pm
April 19 — Anytime

April 20-9,10,11,12,10r2

April 21 — Anytime

Let me know if any of these times might work.

-Chris

[(8)] ExX. 6 HEGE Ex. 6 ! chornback@nacwa.org

From: Greenwalt, Sarah [inzilio:sreenwalt sarah@epa.sov]

Sent: Tuesday, March 28, 2017 10:31 AM

To: Chris Hornback <CHornhacki@nacwa.org>

Cc: Hupp, Sydney <hupp.sydneyi@epa.gov>; Brown, Byron <brown. byron@epa.gov>; Washington, Valerie
<Washington Valerie@epa.gov>

Subject: Meeting

Mr. Hornback,
Thank you for reaching out. We would be delighted to get something on the calendar. Do you have a date in mind?
Best,

Sarah A. Greenwalt
Sentor Advisor to the Administrator
tor Water and Cross-Cutting Issues

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Work: 202-564-1722| Cell:; Ex. 6 §

Greenwalt.Saraliepagoy
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Message

From: Greenwalt, Sarah [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=6C13775B8F424E90802669B87B135024-GREENWALT,]

Sent: 5/16/2017 11:32:58 AM

To: Matthew Holmes [Matt@nrwa.org]; Washington, Valerie [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=9d031c02ce3a416dad0d421ee998d5a3-VWASHING]

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

On May 8, 2017, at 11:59 AM, Matthew Holmes <} att@nrwa.cre> wrote:

Right after lunch works well for us (alternatively we could meet somewhere for funch). Another option
would be to meet at our office at 101 Constitution, you are welcome there. | will leave it to you to
decide and we will make it happen.

Matt

From: Greenwalt, Sarah [inzilio:sreenwalt sarah@epa.sov]
Sent: Monday, May 8, 2017 10:37 AM

To: Matthew Holmes <Matti@nrwa.org>

Subject: RE: Thanks from NRWA

Matt,

Thank you for tollowing up. As of now, Tuesday afternoon (the 16th) is wide open. Please let me
know what time you guys would prefer to connect.

Sarah A. Greenwalt
Senior Advisor to the Administrator
tor Water and Cross-Cutting Issues

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Work: 202-564-1722 | Cell:; Ex. 6

CreenwalbSarab@enagoy

From: Matthew Holmes [mailto:Matt@ newa. org]
Sent: Monday, May 8, 2017 10:35 AM

To: Greenwalt, Sarah <greenwalt sarah@epa.sov>
Subject: Thanks from NRWA

Good morning Sarah,
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Thank you and Administrator Pruitt for a great meeting last week — we appreciate the candid
conversation and your willingness to listen! Our board leadership was very impressed and encouraged.

Sam and | will be in DC next week, from Monday around noon until Thursday morning. | will be
attending the “Peer-to-Peer” meeting that is being held by OWM on Tuesday and Wednesday

morning. We are open to meeting with you anytime, aside from Wednesday from 11:00 — 1:00pm when
Sam has another commitment.

| thought | would include some follow-up information on the technical assistance grant topic that we
discussed at our meeting. We are currently in final negotiations for our FY16 cooperative

agreement. The Project Officer is very new — Leslie Temple. We have been working with Mike Finn in
the past as the Project Officer, as well as Maria Lopez-Carbo of course. They are both supportive of our
efforts, but haven’t really been open to addressing the structural problems with how the RFA is set up.

If things work as they have in the past, OGWDW will release the RFA for the new round of grants this
summer. I'm sure you are aware of this, but additional information is online here:
hitos:/fwww.epa.eov/dweanacity/training-and-technical-assistance-smail-systems-funding.

| have attached our latest appropriations request fact sheet for the EPA program. This includes the
language that Mike Keegan referred to in the meeting, the Grassroots Rural and Small Community
Water Systems Assistance Act (Public Law 114-98). As | mentioned in the meeting, this program is
essential for small water systems. When the program was eliminated in 2007 due to the new earmark
rules, Rural Water delivered 15,000 letters of support to EPA to retain this program. Unfortunately, the
effort was continually watered down with many different organizations providing online tools, webinars,
surveys, planning efforts, etc. While this looks good on paper, it is not effective for rural and small
system personnel. | know I'm not telling you anything you don’t already know!

Thank you again for what you and Administrator Pruitt are doing for this Agency. EPA has a critically
important mission, and every one of our 30,000+ members recognizes this. We are long-standing
partners, and we are eager to help get things back on track. My cell number is below — please feel free
to call or email at any hour if we can be of help.

Sincerely,

Matt

Matthew Holmes

Deputy CEO
National Rural Water Association
| Ex. 6 | s nrwa.org

FYI — here Keegan’s contact info:

<image001.jpg>
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